

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) NT MOVES BUILD GRANT - TRE DOUBLE TRACKING CONSTRUCTION PROJECT RFP #26-T003

The Fort Worth Transportation Authority operating as ("Trinity Metro") outlines the following schedule:

RFP Release Date:	November 6, 2025, 3:00 PM CST	
Proposal Submission Deadline:	Submission Deadline: December 18, 2025, 2:00 PM CST	
REVIEW THE FULL SCHEDULE OF EVENTS IN SECTION 2		
DAVIS BACON	TX20250026	

Preamble:

The Fort Worth Transportation Authority, operating as Trinity Metro, is a regional transportation authority of the State of Texas, created pursuant to Chapter 452 of the Texas Transportation Code and confirmed by a public referendum on November 8, 1983. Trinity Metro provides public transportation services within the city limits of Fort Worth, Forest Hill, and River Oaks. Such services include fixed bus routes, mobility impaired transportation service (Paratransit services), carpool/vanpool services, ON-DEMAND and commuter rail (operating as TEXRail and Trinity Railway Express (TRE)). A one-half of one percent (\$.0050) sales tax is dedicated to supporting Trinity Metro's public transportation program. Trinity Metro is also the recipient of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) capital grants and Texas Commission on Environmental Quality grants.

Trinity Metro is governed by an eleven-member Board of appointed officials. Eight Board members are appointed by the Fort Worth City Council and 3 Board members are appointed by the Tarrant County Commissioners Court, in accordance with Subchapter N., Sec. 452.562 (c) - (f) of the Transportation Code. The Board sets policy through standing and ad hoc committees, and establishes broad business goals and policies for management. The President & Chief Executive Officer reports to the Board, and is responsible for implementation of Board policies and day-to-day operations of Trinity Metro.

This Request for Proposal (RFP) neither creates nor implies any obligation on the part of the Trinity Metro to award a contract or to pay any costs incurred in the preparation or submittal of any Proposal.

Trinity Metro 801 Grove Street Fort Worth, Texas 76102



Table of Contents

Section 1 Minimum Requirements	
Section 2 Schedule of Events	
Section 3 Instructions to Proposers	5
Section 4 Evaluation Criteria	
Section 5 Scope of Services	
Section 6 Special Provisions	
Section 7 Federal Contract and Other Requirements	
Section 8 Safety, Security and Emergency Requirements	
Section 9 Attachments and Forms	
F1 – ATTACHMENTS AND AMENDMENTS	56
F2 – CERTIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR REGARDING SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTER	
F3 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST ACKNOWLEDGMENT A	ND CERTIFICATION 59
F4 – CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH RESTRIC	CTIONS ON LOBBYING. 61
F5 – BUSINESS QUESTIONNAIRE	62
F6 - BUY AMERICA CERTIFICATION	64
F7 – LIST OF REFERENCES FOR SIMILAR PROJECTS	65
F8 – AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION	66
F9 – PROHIBITION OF CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES	BOYCOTTING ISRAEL 67
F10 – FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CERTIFICATION	
F11 – TRINITY METRO SAFETY, SECURITY AND EMER	GENCY REQUIREMENTS
F13 – BID BOND	
OFFER AND CONTRACT SIGNATURE FORM	74
ΔΤΤΔCHMENT Δ	75



Section 1 Minimum Requirements			
NAME	FORM DESCRIPTION	FORM NUMBER	SUBMIT WITH OFFER?
Cover Page	Solicitation Number, Title, Due Date	None	YES □
Section 2	Schedule of Events	None	
Section 3	Instruction to Proposers	None	
Section 4	Evaluation and Response	None	
Section 5	Scope of Work	None	
Section 6	Special Provisions	None	
Section 7	Federal Contract and Other Requirements	None	
Section 8	Trinity Metro Safety, Security and Emergency	None	
Section 9	Attachments and Amendments	F1	YES 🗆
	Certification of Contractor Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters	F2	YES 🗆
	Conflict of Interest Acknowledgement and Certification	F3	YES □
	Certification of Compliance with Restriction on Lobbying	F4	YES 🗆
	Business Questionnaire & List of References	F5	YES □
	Buy America Certification	F6	YES □
	List of References for Similar Projects	F7	YES □
	Affidavit of Non-Collusion	F8	YES □
	Prohibition of Contracts with Companies Boycotting Israel	F9	YES 🗆
	Federal Tax Liability and Recent Felony Convictions Certification	F10	YES □
	Trinity Metro Safety, Security and Emergency	F11	YES □
	Base Price Proposal	F12	YES 🗆
	Bid Bond	F13	YES 🗆
	Offer and Contract Signature		YES □
	Attachment A		YES 🗆

NOTE: FAILURE TO SUBMIT ALL REQUESTED ITEMS ABOVE, PROPERLY COMPLETED, CAN BE CAUSE FOR REJECTION OF YOUR FIRM'S SUBMITTAL!!!



Section 2 Schedule of Events

EVENTS	DATE	TIME
RFP Release Date	November 6, 2025	3:00 PM CST
Pre-Proposal Meeting	November 12, 2025	10:00 AM CST
Deadline for Submission of Written Questions (1)	December 5, 2025	5:00 PM CST
Proposal Submission Deadline	December 18, 2025	2:00 PM CST
Proposal Opening Location: Virtual - Microsoft TEAMS	December 18, 2025	3:00 PM CST
Interviews/Demonstrations from Most Qualified Proposers (<i>if necessary</i>) ₍₂₎	TBD	
Trinity Metro Board Meeting to Recommend Contract Approval (3)	January 2026	
Contract Executed (4)	February 2026	

- (1) Questions will be received in writing by e-mail. No questions will be answered verbally.
- (2) The Trinity Metro reserves the right not to conduct oral demonstrations and/or interviews and select a Contractor based on written proposals only.
- (3) The Evaluation Committee's recommendation of contract award is scheduled for Board presentation by the date above; however, Trinity Metro reserves the right to change the award date.
- (4) Trinity Metro reserves the right to change the contract execution date.



Section 3 Instructions to Proposers

3.1 Downloading RFP and Submission of Proposals

RFP documents can be downloaded from Trinity Metro's website and the Proposals can be submitted electronically on Bonfire or in hard copy to the address listed below.

https://www.procuretm.org/procurements

A person or firm submitting a proposal in response to this RFP is a "Proposer." A Proposer who enters into a Contract under this RFP is referred to as "Contractor." Sealed proposals must be delivered by the date and time outlined in the Schedule of Events in Section 2. Proposers shall submit one original, one copy, and all of the required Proposal documents. All Proposal documents shall be in a sealed package, addressed as shown below, bearing the Proposer's name and address and clearly marked as follows:

Trinity Metro
Attn: PROCUREMENT
801 Grove Street
Fort Worth, TX 76102
RFP 26-T003 NT MOVES BUILD Grant - TRE Double Tracking Construction
Project

Proposers can also submit proposals electronically using the Trinity Metro electronic bidding portal, Bonfire, at:

https://ridetm.bonfirehub.com/portal/?tab=openOpportunities

All proposals, electronic or hard copy, must be submitted by the date stated in the schedule of events. It is the sole responsibility of the Proposer to ensure timely delivery of the proposal. Trinity Metro will not be responsible for failure of service on the part of the U.S. Post Office, courier services, electronic difficulties, or any other form of delivery service chosen by Respondent.

Proposals arriving late for any reason will not be accepted.

3.2 For uniformity, all Proposers must submit information in the order and format requested in this RFP. Failure to do so may cause the proposal to be deemed nonresponsive to the RFP. Information requested in the RFP that the Proposer deems privileged and confidential, may be submitted in a separate envelope marked "Privileged and Confidential Information." Trinity Metro will use its best efforts to protect such information from disclosure to the extent allowable by law. There will be no release of information until (a) the selection process is complete and a Contract has been executed or (b) Trinity Metro has formally terminated this procurement.

3.3 Exceptions to Any Portion of the Solicitation Requirements

All exceptions, conditions, and limitations (collectively, "exceptions") taken to or imposed on the terms and conditions of the RFP (including, without limitation, any of its attachments or other parts of the RFP) shall be clearly identified and submitted with Proposer's proposal. Each exception shall specifically reference each



paragraph(s) and/or specific part(s) of the RFP to which the exception is taken. Proposer shall provide rationale in support of the exception and fully explain its impact, if any, on its performance of or obligations under the procurement.

Proposers are cautioned to limit exceptions. In Trinity Metro's sole and absolute judgment, exceptions may be determined to be so fundamental as to cause rejection of the proposal for not responding to the requirements of the RFP.

All exceptions will be considered during the evaluation process. Exceptions made after Contract award may result in proposal being rejected.

3.4 Basis for Contract Negotiation

A contract, if any, awarded under this RFP is defined herein as "the Contract" or "this Contract." The terms, conditions, representations, warranties, and other provisions of this RFP will be incorporated into and will form the bulk of the Contract, except to the extent otherwise expressly confirmed in writing signed by Trinity Metro. Thus, this RFP and the Proposer's proposal shall be used as the basis for contract negotiation. The RFP does not commit Trinity Metro to procure or award any contract for the scope of work described herein.

3.5 Non-Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting

Respondents are encouraged to attend a pre-proposal meeting on the date and time listed in the Schedule of Events in Section 2. During this meeting, Trinity Metro will discuss information about the project, the qualification requirements and process, and will address particular questions that may occur because of review of this RFP.

3.6 Rejection and Selection of Proposals; Modification of the RFP

- 1. Trinity Metro reserves the right to reject any or all proposals.
- 2. If a Contract is awarded, the selection of the proposal and Proposer shall conform to the requirements of applicable law and shall, in Trinity Metro's sole discretion, be in the best interests of Trinity Metro.
- 3. Trinity Metro reserves the right to:
 - a. Amend, modify, or withdraw this RFP;
 - b. Revise any requirements under this RFP;
 - c. Require supplemental statements of information from any Proposer;
 - d. Extend the deadline for submission of responses hereto;
 - e. Negotiate or hold discussions with any Proposer to correct insufficient responses that do not completely conform to the instructions contained herein;
 - f. Waive any nonconformity with this RFP;
 - g. Cancel, in whole or in part, this RFP if Trinity Metro deems it is in its best interest to do so:
 - h. Request additional information or clarification of information provided in the proposal without changing the terms of the RFP; and
 - i. Waive any portion of the selection process in order to accelerate the negotiation of a Contract with a Proposer that meets the requirements under applicable law and this RFP for an award.



Trinity Metro may exercise the foregoing rights at any time without notice and without liability to any Proposer or any other party for expenses incurred in the preparation of proposals or otherwise. Proposals will be prepared at the sole cost and expense of the Proposer.

- 4. Nothing stated at any time, by any representative of Trinity Metro, will effect a change in, or constitute an addition to, this RFP unless confirmed in writing through an Addenda issued by Trinity Metro to this RFP.
- 5. The Proposer agrees to keep confidential its response and any information received from Trinity Metro.
- 6. All information submitted in response to the RFP shall become the property of Trinity Metro, and as such, may be subject to public review as public records.
- 7. Proposer acknowledges and agrees that Trinity Metro will not be liable for any costs, expenses, losses, damages (including damages for loss of anticipated profit), or liabilities incurred by the Proposer or any member thereof as a result of, or arising out of its submitting a proposal, negotiating changes to such proposal, or Trinity Metro's acceptance or non-acceptance of the proposal.
- 8. Trinity Metro shall control the release of all public information concerning the procurement under this RFP, including selection announcements and Contract awards. Those desiring to release information to the public must receive prior written approval from an authorized representative of Trinity Metro.
- 9. Neither Trinity Metro nor any of its officers, agents, consultants, or employees shall be responsible for the accuracy of any information provided as part of this RFP (including appendices). All Proposers are encouraged to independently verify the accuracy of any information provided. The use of this information in the preparation of a proposal is at the sole risk of the Proposer.
- 10. The Proposer shall not collude in any manner or engage in any practices with any other Proposer(s), which may restrict or eliminate competition or otherwise restrain trade. Violation of this instruction will cause Trinity Metro to reject the Proposer's submittal. This prohibition is not intended to preclude joint ventures or subcontracts.
- 11. All proposals must be the original work product of the Proposer. The copying, paraphrasing, or other use of substantial portions of the work product of another Proposer is not permitted. Failure to adhere to this instruction will cause Trinity Metro to reject the proposal. The successful Proposer will be required to enter into Contract by signature on separate Contract documents, which will be prepared by Trinity Metro from information in the RFP and the successful Proposer's proposal.
- 12. Any Proposer may protest such recommended award in accordance with Section 7.14 Rights and Remedies.



3.7 Response to Communications and Request for Clarification

It is the responsibility of the proposer to examine the entire RFP package and seek clarification of any scope of work, specification item, requirement, or any other matter that it finds unclear. Furthermore, the Proposer must check the proposal for accuracy before submission. All requests for clarifications or changes shall be submitted in writing in time to be received in accordance with the Schedule of Events outlined in Section 2.

Trinity Metro will not respond to oral requests. Only written requests for questions and/or clarifications, will be acceptable (email and/or email attachments will be accepted). All questions and/or clarifications requests shall be sent to the attention as identified below. Only written responses from Trinity Metro in the form of addenda to this RFP shall be official, and all other forms of communication with any officer, employee or agent of Trinity Metro shall not be binding.

All questions and/or clarifications and/or request for a change to any of the specifications shall be fully supported with technical data, test results, or other pertinent information evidencing that the exception will result in a condition equal to or better than that required by the RFP, without substantial increase in cost or time requirements. Any responses to such written requests shall be provided by Trinity Metro in the form of an addendum.

All questions or request for clarifications regarding the services required shall be submitted in writing and/or email (no phone inquiries will be accepted) and addressed to:

Anthony Brown, Contract Administrator Trinity Metro 801 Grove Street Fort Worth, Texas 76102 E-mail: contractmgmt@ridetm.org

<u>Proposers shall not contact members of the Evaluation Committee or Board of Directors concerning this RFP. Any proposers violating this provision may be disqualified from consideration in this RFP.</u>

3.8 Addenda and Attachments to RFP

This RFP has been posted on Trinity Metro's website and Trinity Metro's electronic bidding portal, Bonfire, for your convenience. Any attachments, addendums, clarifications or further instructions to Proposers, whether as a result of questions raised by Proposers or matters initiated by Trinity Metro will also be posted when issued. It is the Proposer's responsibility to ensure that the entire RFP package, in its latest version, is reviewed prior to submittal of a proposal.

3.9 Contract Award

Trinity Metro reserves the right for any reason or no stated reason to postpone, accept, or reject any and/or all proposals, to waive any irregularities in proposals received, and award the Contract(s) in accordance with applicable law and this RFP. Trinity Metro reserves the right to make multiple awards.

Trinity Metro shall consider all elements entering into the determination of the responsiveness of the proposal and the responsibility of the Proposer. Any proposal which



is incomplete, conditional, obscure, or which contains additions not called for or irregularities of any kind, may be cause for rejection of the Proposal.

The Contract may be awarded within 90 calendar days from the date upon which proposals were received or such other date as is specified in the Schedule of Events above in this RFP. No award shall be made for a proposal Trinity Metro determines to be non-responsive or to a Proposer Trinity Metro determines to be not responsible.

If a single proposal is received, Trinity Metro will conduct a price and/or cost analysis of the proposal. A price analysis is the process of examining and evaluating a price submitted without examining in detail the separate cost elements and the profit included in the cost proposal. A price analysis through comparison to other similar procurements shall be based upon an established or competitive price of the elements used in the comparison. The comparison shall be made to a purchase of similar quantity and involving similar specifications. Where a difference exists, a detailed analysis shall be made of this difference and costs associated thereto. Trinity Metro has the right to enter into a negotiated procurement should only a single proposal be received.

Where it is impossible to obtain a valid price analysis, it may be necessary for Trinity Metro to conduct a cost analysis of the proposal price.

3.10 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Requirements

There is no Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal assigned to this contract; however, DBE firms are encouraged to respond to this RFP, and joint ventures with DBE firms are also encouraged.

3.11 Non-Collusion Affidavit

Proposer shall submit, with its proposal, an affidavit stating that neither Proposer nor its agents, nor any other party on its behalf, has paid or agreed to pay, directly or indirectly, any person, firm, or corporation, any money or valuable consideration for assistance in procuring or attempting to procure the Contract that may result from this RFP, and further agrees that no such money or consideration will be hereafter paid. This affidavit shall be on the form provided by Trinity Metro, which is made a part of this RFP.

3.12 Proposer's Texas Government Code Certifications

Pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Government Code cited below, Proposer represents, warrants, and affirms the following, and Proposer covenants that if circumstances relevant to any of the following change during the term of a contract that may be awarded to Proposer under this RFP, Proposer will promptly notify Trinity Metro of such change.

 Sec. 2252.152. Proposer is not engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, and Proposer is not identified on the list created by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services to Iran, Sudan, or a foreign terrorist organization.



- 2. **Sec. 2271.002.** Either (a) Proposer does not and will not for the duration of the Contract boycott Israel or (b) the verification required by Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to this procurement.
- **3.** Chapter 2274. Either (a) Proposer does not and will not for the duration of the Contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (b) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to this procurement.
- 4. **Section 2276.002.** Either (a) Proposer does not and will not for the duration of the Contract boycott energy companies or (b) the verification required by Section 2276.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to this Agreement.
- 5. **Section 2252.908** If Section 2252.908 of the Texas Government Code applies to this procurement, and if Proposer is awarded a Contract, Proposer will submit to Trinity Metro a Certificate of Interested Parties (Form 1295) before the execution of the Contract. Refer to the information at the Texas Ethics Commission's website for instructions on registering and completing Form 1295.

3.13 Davis Bacon

For construction projects costing over \$2,000; Davis-Bacon Wages Rate apply and Davis Bacon Certified Payroll must be submitted weekly. The current wage determination rates for this project are attached as Exhibit "A". The recommended fillable Davis Bacon form WH347 for reporting purposes is also attached. Instructions for completing payroll WH347 and the fillable Davis Bacon WH347 payment form maybe found at: https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/forms/wh347

3.14 Force Majeure

- 1. Definition: An Event of Force Majeure is defined as acts of God; earthquake, unusually severe weather, flood and any other natural disaster; civil disturbance, strikes and labor disputes; fires and explosions; war and other hostilities; embargo; or failure of third parties, including suppliers or subcontractors, to perform their obligations to the Contractor due to a force majeure event described above.
- Economic hardship, changes in market conditions, or insufficient funds do not constitute an Event of Force Majeure, and an Event of Force Majeure does not excuse an obligation to make a payment required under this Contract.
- 3. If Contractor cannot perform some of its obligations due to an Event of Force Majeure, it must nevertheless continuously and diligently carry out and complete all of its obligations not prevented by the Event of Force Majeure.
- 4. Notice of Delay. If Contractor is delayed in the performance of the Services due to an Event of Force Majeure or otherwise, Contractor must in a prompt manner upon receiving knowledge of such delay give written notice thereof to Trinity Metro and furnish Trinity Metro information concerning the cause of the delay and its approximate anticipated length and demonstrating, if applicable, that the delay is due to an Event of Force Majeure.



- 5. Sole Relief. If an Event of Force Majeure occurs, provided Contractor has complied with all applicable notice requirements regarding a request for relief under this section, Contractor is excused from performance of its obligations under this Contract, but only for the time and to the extent that such performance is actually prevented by the Event of Force Majeure. When Contractor is able to resume performance of its obligations, it shall immediately give Trinity Metro written notice to that effect and promptly resume performance under this Contract. The relief offered by this Force Majeure provision is the exclusive remedy available to Contractor with respect to an Event of Force Majeure, and no claim for damages shall be made by either party for delays resulting from an Event of Force Majeure.
- 6. Continuing Delays. Trinity Metro may terminate this Contract if: (a) Contractor's failure to perform under this Contract due to an Event of Force Majeure impairs the material benefits of this Contract to Trinity Metro; and (b) Contractor does not resume performance in accordance with this Contract within ten (10) business days following Trinity Metro's giving notice to Contractor of Trinity Metro's intent to terminate this Contract.

3.15 Bonds

Proposal bonds/Proposal Guarantee is five percent (5%) of Price Proposal and shall be included with the Proposal package on the required day and time as described in Section 2 Schedule of Events. Performance and Payment bonds shall be submitted upon award of the contract and shall be free and clear of any encumbrances and submitted within ten days of receipt of the contract for signature.

<u>Performance Bond (100%) and Payment Bond (100%) will be required upon contract execution.</u>



Section 4 Evaluation Criteria

Evaluation and Selection Criteria

Proposals will be evaluated by a selection committee of individuals from Trinity Metro. Trinity Metro will evaluate the proposals in accordance with the criteria listed below.

At Trinity Metro's own discretion, Trinity Metro, may negotiate with proposer whose proposal is ranked the most qualified based on the evaluation factors set forth below and/or within the competitive range. Proposals shall be clear, concise and include sufficient detail for effective evaluation.

Please limit your submission to a maximum of fifty (50) pages (not including resumes). A maximum five (5) page Executive Summary may be submitted within the fifty (50) page limitations. There is a limitation of up to fifty (50) pages of information directly related to the five (5) evaluation criteria elements listed below.

The Executive Summary of the proposal

This summary shall include:

- Identification and address for the primary team members, including joint-venture partners, if any, major subcontractors;
- Summary of relevant business and construction experience;
- Corporate and/or joint-venture vision and mission statement;
- Phone numbers for primary contact person;
- Any other relevant information.
- At a minimum, identify subcontractors performing tasks as shown in the Schedule.
 Identify remaining portions of the project that will be subcontracted to complete construction.
- A letter from the Proposer's chief executive officer guaranteeing the key personnel named in the staffing plan will be assigned to the project, unless their employment is terminated. If substitutes or "backup" personnel are planned on a contingency basis, such personnel shall be identified in the staffing plan.

The remaining pages of supportive information may include graphs, charts, photos, references etc., and is totally at the Proposer's discretion. Supportive Information, Cost Schedule Evaluation Criteria, Past Performance Ratings, and Appendices will not be included in the total page count of the solicitation as shown above.



Discount of the following in community	B. 8
Please address each of the following in your proposal.	Max Points
A. PROJECT APPROACH	20
8 Points : Task Performance: Provide a detailed description of the performance of the tasks described in the scope of work how your team will collaborate with the other contractors throughout the project delivery process in particular, to reduce cost, improve quality, expedite schedule and minimize impact to the existing operations and overall schedule for completion.	20
6 Points: Quality: Explain what your quality approach will be on this project. Provide an outline of your proposed Quality Control Program (QCP), tracking and resolution of quality issues. Explain approach on ensuring quality from subcontractors. Quality Control Plan shall be included under separate cover entitled Appendix B. The outline of your proposed QCP shall be for RFP evaluation purposes only, and will serve as the baseline for the project specific Quality Control Program/Plan. The successful Proposer will be required to submit a final project-specific Quality Control Plan for review and incorporation of the Authority's comments prior to approval. The review of the outline of your program does not represent approval of the final program. The QCP shall define specific processes and procedures for quality control activities for construction. The Quality Control Program (QCP) shall meet the following requirements:	
 Define an organized approach for quality activities to be performed under the contract. Delineate the quality organization relationship and include any subcontractors that may support the quality organization. Define internal controls for verification of contract requirements. Identify adequate resources to meet the conditions of the Contract and assign qualified personnel for these activities. 	
Quality personnel shall be independent of those having the responsibility for the work being performed. Quality personnel shall perform verification activities including the verification of the adequacy and implementation of the quality control procedures as they relate to construction activities.	
Identify the qualifications and experience of the quality personnel responsible for the implementation of the elements in the QCP. Include the job descriptions for the Consultant's assigned personnel. Identify role and responsibilities of quality personnel. Describe controls required for the management of quality on the project upon identification of deficient work including but not limited to a "Step Work Order".	
identification of deficient work including, but not limited to, a "Stop Work Order".	
6 Points: Record of Safety - Experience Modification Rating (EMR)	
Safety Rating: Proposer will submit their EMR rating from the past 3 years. If an EMR is not provided, proposers will be assigned a 1.00. Proposers submitting as a joint venture will use the average of each company's 3-year average. The 3 EMR ratings will be averaged, and the points will be awarded based on the following:	



Safety Experience Modification Rating		
EMR Scoring Criteria	Points Awarded	
075	4	
.7699	2	
1.00 and Above	0	

^{*}Proposers with less than 3 years of safety rating will automatically have an EMR of 1.0

B. SCHEDULE AND COST CONTROL

8 Points: Provide a detailed project schedule that defines your proposed work plan that would result in the best price for the work and deliver the project on schedule as described in the scope of services (Base Price Schedule). This schedule should illustrate the proposed work plan in sufficient detail to understand and track the progress of the work as defined in the scope of services. The schedule should define, at a minimum, the following information for each activity: description, start date, end date, duration, and relationship to other activities. Proposer should include any methodologies and concepts they intend to use to improve the project schedule and mitigate any potential delays.

Within each phase of the work, the schedule should include specific and relevant activities, such as: services defined in the scope of work, activities and work product for each discipline, milestones for deliverables, review by jurisdictional authorities, coordination with other contractors and other third parties.

- **4 Points:** Describe examples of past performance, including what you have done to mitigate cost increases when trend reports indicate the estimated costs at completion will exceed budget.
- **4 Points:** Within budget: Explain how you will approach cost savings opportunities to complete construction within the established budget. Describe your approach to minimize project changes. Describe your approach to determining whether project changes are inside or outside the scope of the fixed price.
- **4 Points:** On-time completion: Describe how you will manage the project to complete construction work on time or ahead of schedule per intermediate and final schedule milestones. Provide a preliminary baseline schedule showing your approach to the project, including proposed phasing (Baseline schedule shall be included under separate cover entitled Appendix A). Describe your firm's scheduling program, monthly update procedures, use of look ahead schedules, tracking of changes to the critical path, and recovery plan procedures. Address staging, sequencing of work, and resource tracking.

20



C. PROJECT TEAM	15
15 Points: Proposed Team: Identify individuals and key personnel who will be	
responsible for overall project management, project engineers, business	
manager, safety, quality control, budget control, schedule control, and utility	
coordination. For those individuals that are not full time, describe how and when	
they will work on the project. For proposed full time individuals, identify your	
commitment that these individuals will not be re-assigned to other projects prior to project completion. Describe time commitments of the key personnel listed below:	
Officer In Charge: Responsible for the overall performance of the job and	
liaison with the Owner.	
Project Manager: Responsible for all day-to-day activities on the project,	
the project team, and liaison with the Owner's representative.	
Discipline Leads: Reporting to the Project Manager/Director, responsible	
for ensuring compliance with the contract documents related to each	
discipline.	
Provide an organization chart to further illustrate the composition of the proposed	
team, key personnel, other personnel required to perform the services, and	
reporting structure.	
Key personnel will be subject to Trinity Metro approval after award.	
Include resumes (in the Proposer's Appendix 8) for all individuals listed in	
your organization chart. Clearly identify their proposed role for this project	
and relevant experience. Resumes should include each individual's	
education, work history, length of tenure with the firm, and relevant	
experience with similar projects. D. PRICE PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA	15
Trinity Metro will compare the Price Proposal to the Technical portion of the	45
proposal to see if there are any inconsistencies between the Technical Proposal	
and the Price Proposal. Once the price proposal is deemed responsible, the	
points are allocated as set forth below:	
The lowest price proposal will be assigned a score of 45. Other remaining scores	
will be arrived by the following calculation:	
Lowest price proposal Amount	
X 45 = Cost Score	
Price proposal Amount Being Evaluated	
The everall energy will be arrived at by adding the energy for the technical	
The overall score will be arrived at by adding the scores for the technical and price proposals.	
Total Points – Total Pages (not including resumes, references, and forms)	100



Section 5 Scope of Services

1. INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND

Trinity Metro (Authority) is soliciting proposals from qualified contractors to provide construction of the North Texas Mulitmoda Operations, Velocity, Efficiency, and Safety Program (NT MOVES) Grant - Trinity Railway Express (TRE) Double Tracking Construction Project in Tarrant County, Texas.

The scope of work will consist of construction and related services as described in this Request for Proposals (RFP).

The proposed TRE double tracking consists of 2.4-miles double tracking of the existing commuter rail system from approximately Handley Ederville Road (MP 618.53) to Precinct Line Road (MP 620.65) located within Tarrant County. This project will also include bridge rehabilitation and new bridge construction at 5 locations. All construction will occur adjacent to TRE active track within the existing TRE right-of-way. Construction will need to be phased so that all construction can be accomplished with no impacts to current TRE operations (Phasing plans have been shown in the plans). Construction duration is anticipated for 18 months.

All Track work and signal/systems construction are excluded from this contract. Contractor is will need to coordinate with the Track and Signal contractors and will be responsible for placing of sub ballast and turnover to track contractor.

2. DESCRIPTION / SCOPE OF WORK FOR DOUBLE TRACK CONSTRUCTION

Construction shall include but not limited to:

2.1 Demolition/Removals:

- a. Richland Hills Station Platform as shown on plans
- b. Railroad Bridges as shown on plans
- c. Track and Signal Demo/Removals by others

2.2 Civil Construction

- (a) SW3P and Site preparation
- (b) subgrade preparation, track bed construction, track grading up to and including subballast
- (c) ditch grading, track underdrains
- (d) bridge construction
- (e) retaining wall construction
- (f) concrete slope protection
- (g) storm drain, culvert & culvert extension installations
- (h) signage installs

3. SCHEDULE

The Contractor shall complete work according to the schedule. The overall duration is Approximately 18 Months from Notice to Proceed.

The intent of the schedule requirement (referenced as Section 5 SP 003) is that the Contractor will submit a baseline schedule for completing all portions of the work. This baseline schedule



will be subject to Trinity Metro (TM) approval and will be used to monitor progress and process payments.

4. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

a. Construction Permits

The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining and the cost of construction permits.

b. Railroad Right of Entry

Contractor agrees to enter into a Right of Entry Agreements with Dallas Area Rapid Transit ('DART") that permit Contractor to enter railroad's properties and that require Contractor to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless DART, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims for bodily injury or death to all persons including employees or representatives of DART for loss and damage to property belonging to any person, arising in any manner in relation to Contractor's or its Subcontractors', and Suppliers' activities arising out of or connected with the right of entry agreement. For assistance with the Right of Entry Agreement, Contractors shall contact: Matthew Lannon, Senior Right of Way Manager, (214)-749-2917 or Tonya Ukeh, Senior Right of Way Representative, (214)-749-3030. Email: Mlannon@dart.org and TUkeh@dart.org, Address: Dallas Area Rapid Transit, 1401 Pacific Avenue, Dallas, Texas, 75201.

c. Roadway Worker Protection / On Track Safety Training

All Contractor's and sub-contractors' personnel working on railroad right-of-way are required to attend Annual Roadway Worker Protection/On Track Safety Training conducted by the railroads. The Contractor's employees are required to attend this training. The estimated cost for the training is \$361.32 for FY26 and \$372.16 for FY27 per class attended by the Contractor's employees. The course is offered locally through Herzog Transit Services, Inc., who is a service contractor to Trinity Metro. Contractor to provide location and space for training.

d. Flagging

Depending on the location of the work, flagging may be required. The cost for flagging services will be carried by Trinity Metro as a contract allowance item. If flaggers are required, the Contractor shall coordinate with the TRE and Trinity Metro to arrange and pay for the flaggers. Qualified railroad flaggers are available through Herzog Transit Services, Inc. (HTSI).

e. Coordination

The location of the work may also require coordination of work with Herzog Transit Services, Inc., (HTSI) who is the operator of the TRE for operations and maintenance for TRE. Mandatory coordination meetings will be established with both the Civil Contractor and the Signal Contractors. These meetings are currently anticipated to be held bi-weekly but may be ramped up to more frequent meetings if project needs or issues arise.

The contacts at HSTI are Mr. Kent Kaser: kkaser@htsi.com, 972-339-3438 and Mr. Butch Koch: bkoch@herzog.com - 972-322-0034.



Section 6 Special Provisions

6.1 Contract Award

This will be a Fixed-Price Contract. The contract period will be for eighteen (18) months. Delivery and performance shall be made only as authorized after funding appropriations and program approval have been granted by Trinity Metro's Board of Directors.

6.2 Expenses & Invoicing

Contractor shall submit monthly invoices for Services delivered, completed and accepted, via email to Trinity Metro's Accounts Payable department at accountspayable@ridetm.org and copy the Department Representative listed under Notices in the contract. The invoice will consist of the contract number, purchase order number, line item number, item description, quantity, units, unit price, and total line item amount. Each invoice shall also include supporting documentation for all eligible expenditures.

Approved invoices amounts will be paid net 30 days from the invoice date. Invoice payments will be made either by check or via Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) to Contractor's designated banking institution. EFT payments are Trinity Metro's desired method of payment. Appropriate Vendor and EFT forms will be provided to Contractor at time of execution of this agreement.

6.3 Selection Procedure

- 1. Proposals received after date and time specified in Section 2 are not eligible and shall not be considered for award of the Contract.
- 2. An Evaluation Committee shall evaluate each proposal that was submitted on time and the evaluation shall be based on the criteria listed Section 4. The sum total points scored on both qualifications and price will be considered in award of a contract. Following this initial evaluation, the Evaluation Committee may make a recommendation to the Board of Director(s) concerning award of contract without further discussion with Proposers. The top rated Proposers may be asked to make an oral presentation to the evaluation team for the purpose of further clarification and evaluation of their proposals.
- 3. Oral presentations, if required, shall be conducted to solicit information to enable the Evaluation Committee to evaluate the capability of the applicable Proposer regarding the desired goods and/or services. If Trinity Metro notifies a Proposer that an oral presentation is required, Trinity Metro shall inform the Proposer of the schedule, order and procedure for the presentation, including its content, time limits, identity of the presenters, and use of handouts and visual aids. Trinity Metro may tape record and/or videotape any presentation.
- 4. If demonstrations are scheduled, the representatives of the Proposer and of its pertinent necessary proposed subcontractors or subconsultants shall be present at the demonstration. During the demonstration, the Evaluation Committee may advise the Proposer of deficiencies in the process and shall allow the Proposer to satisfy the requirements, questions, or concerns by submitting an amended final proposal. The Proposer may decide not to modify its proposal and may inform the Evaluation Committee that the proposal is firm and final.



- 5. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Trinity Metro at its sole option may elect to forego demonstration presentations. Consequently, all proposals shall be comprehensive and clear. No Proposer shall rely upon the opportunity to present additional or clarifying information at a later time.
- 6. The Evaluation Committee shall not disclose any information included in a proposing firm's Proposal Documentation to another firm, and shall not disclose any information for the purpose of bringing one firm's Proposal Documentation up to that of a competitor's Proposal Documentation.
- 7. If amended final proposals are accepted, the Evaluation Committee shall reevaluate each of the final proposals, including those deemed final at a demonstration, if any. Final proposals shall be evaluated on the same criteria used in the first evaluation.
- 8. The Evaluation Committee may recommend the top ranked Proposer to the Board of Director(s), who shall make the final selection.
- Award of contract shall be made to the responsive, responsible Proposer whose proposal is determined to provide the best value to Trinity Metro based on the evaluation criteria set forth in Section 4.

6.4 Open Records

All proposals become the property of Trinity Metro and are subject to the Texas Public Information Act (PIA), Proposers must familiarize themselves with the provisions of the PIA. In no event shall Trinity Metro, or any of its agents, representatives, proposers, directors, officers, or employees be liable to a Proposer for the disclosure of all or any portion of a proposal. If Trinity Metro receives a request for public disclosure of all or any portion of a proposal, Trinity Metro will endeavor to notify the Proposer of the request. If a Proposer has special concerns about information which it desires to make available to Trinity Metro but which it believes constitutes a trade secret, proprietary information or other information excepted from disclosure, it shall identify those portions of its proposal by clearly and prominently marking it "CONFIDENTIAL." The basis of the claim of confidentiality shall be stated in the proposal adjacent to the marked information. Blanket statements regarding the confidentiality of information may not be sufficient to protect the confidentiality of information submitted. A Proposer is encouraged to seek counsel regarding any information it seeks to keep confidential. In no event shall any of Trinity Metro's directors, employees, administrator, consultants, or agents be liable for the disclosure of any materials or information submitted in a Proposal.

6.5 Proposer's Acknowledgement

By submitting a proposal, the Proposer unequivocally acknowledges that the Proposer has read and fully understands this RFP, and that the Proposer has asked questions and received satisfactory answers from Trinity Metro regarding any provisions of this RFP with regard to which the Proposer desires clarification.



6.6 Incorporation of Proposer's Proposal

- 1. Trinity Metro reserves the right to incorporate all or portions of the successful Proposer's proposal including any revisions and supplements into the Contract by reference or in full.
- 2. If, after Contract award, it is discovered that changes were agreed to in writing during negotiations, but were not incorporated into the resulting Contract, such changes shall be considered administrative in nature and incorporated by unilateral modification at no change in the Contract cost or price, or other terms and conditions. To satisfy the contract requirements, Proposer shall adhere to the price and other terms accepted by Trinity Metro.
- Notwithstanding the foregoing, no portions of the proposal that conflict with, limit, impair, or otherwise diminish the benefits afforded to Trinity Metro under this RFP shall be deemed incorporated into the Contract only if such provisions are expressly approved by Trinity Metro in writing.

6.7. Insurance Requirements

During the term of the Contract, Contractor shall maintain all insurance required by the Contract Documents. Policies shall be purchased only from insurance companies that are acceptable to TRINITY METRO, are authorized to do insurance business in Texas, and have a resident agent in Texas. Contractor shall indemnify and defend TRINITY METRO for any liability or damages that TRINITY METRO may incur due to Contractor's failure to purchase or maintain any required insurance.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Contractor, at its own expense, shall procure and maintain during the entire period of its pertormance under the Contract, for both "on-site" and "offsite" risks, the following minimum insurance:

Until Final Acceptance of the Work (as defined in Section 6, below), Contractor and its Subcontractors, at their own expense, must provide and maintain the insurance coverages and policy limits set forth below. All insurance procured by the Contractor and its Subcontractors must be in a policy form and from insurance companies reasonably acceptable to TRINITY METRO.

- I. Automobile Liability Insurance
 Commercial Automobile Liability insurance is required which covers the use of
 all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles that are used in connection with the
 Project with limits and terms of the following:
 - a. \$1,000,000 Bodily Injury Per Person
 - b. \$1,000,000 Bodily Injury Per Accident
 - c. \$1,000,000 Property Damage Per Accident or
 - d. \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit; and
 - e. MCS-90 endorsement required for transporting hazardous materials or waste



- f. Endorsement removing exclusions for operations within 25 feet of a railroad Coverage applies to both on-site and off-site activities.
- II. Worker's Compensation Insurance

Worker's Compensation Insurance is required with statutory limits with All States endorsement and Employer Liability Limits and terms of the following:

- a. \$1,000,000 Bodily Injury with Accident Each Accident
- b. \$1,000,000 Bodily Injury by Disease Policy Limit
- c. \$1,000,000 Bodily Injury by Disease Each Employee
- d. Applies to both on-site and off-site activities
- III. Commercial General Liability Insurance

Commercial General Liability Insurance is required with limits and terms as follows:

- a. Combined Bodily Injury and Property Damage Limit of \$10,000,000 per occurrence, \$10,000,000, General Aggregate, \$10,000,000 Products and Completed Operations, including the following terms, conditions and endorsements:
 - i. Occurrence Basis
 - ii. No Exclusions for Demolition Work
 - iii. Contractual Liability endorsement
 - iv. Products/Completed Operations to remain in place 5 years after project completion
 - v. Additional insured endorsements for ongoing and completed operations
 - vi. Broad Form Proper Damage;
 - vii. No exclusion for Independent Contractors.
 - viii. Primary and Non-Contributory Endorsement
 - ix. Endorsement removing exclusions from contractual liability coverage for operations within 25 feet of a railroad
- IV. Railroad Protective Liability written on standard ISO form CG 0035 with Trinity Metro and Herzog Transit Services as the named insured in the amount of \$2 million per occurrence \$6 million aggregate.
- V. Builder Risk Insurance covering all risks of direct physical loss, in an amount of insurance equal at all times to the replacement value of materials delivered and labor performed. The policy shall be insured jointly in the names of the Contractor and Trinity Metro.
 - a. TRINITY METRO and its directors, officers, representatives, agents, employees,

Consultants, Dallas Area Rapid Transit, Herzog Transit Services, Inc., Herzog Technologies Inc., BNSF Railway Company, and National Railroad Passenger Corporation ("Amtrak"), Dallas, Garland and



Northeastern Railroad and Union Pacific shall be endorsed as additional insureds.

b. Coverage applies to off-site activities

VI. Contractor's Equipment

Contractor and Subcontractors of any tier shall insure or self-insure risk of loss or damage to equipment, tools, or personal effects, owned, rented, leased or borrowed to or in the care, custody or control of Contractor, Subcontractor(s) of any tier, or any person(s) furnishing labor or Materials. TRINITY METRO will not be responsible for any loss or damage to, or for obtaining insurance for equipment, tools, or personal effects, owned, rented, or leased to or in the care, custody or control of Contractor or Subcontractors of any tier.

VII. Additional Insureds

The Contractor required insurance (except for Workers' Compensation and Professional Liability insurance) shall include provisions or endorsement naming Trinity Metro, its Consultants, Dallas Area Rapid Transit, Trinity Railway Express, Herzog Transit Services, Inc., Herzog Technologies Inc., BNSF Railway Company, and National Railroad Passenger Corporation ("Amtrak"), Dallas, Garland and Northeastern Railroad and Union Pacific and their representatives, officers, Board Members, directors, and employees as additional insureds with respect to Work or operations connected with the Contract for insurance required under this Section.

VIII. Certificates of Insurance

Prior to commencing work and within ten days of NTP issued, Contractor shall provide Trinity Metro with Certificates of Insurance evidencing the insurance required under the Contract. The Certificates shall include Contractor's name, name of the Contract, TRINITY METRO's Contract number, and reference to all of the provisions and endorsements required by this Section. The Certificates shall be signed on behalf of the insurer by its Authorized Representative. If requested in writing by Trinity Metro, Contractor agrees to furnish copies of such policies, or policy forms, certified by an Authorized Representative of the insurer.

Contractor and its Subcontractors of any tier will provide Trinity Metro's Insurance Administrator with a certificate of insurance setting out the above coverage, limits, and amendments to the certificate necessitated by changes to the Work to be performed under the Contract until the date of final payment.

All required certificates shall be forwarded to the insurance administrator at the following address:

TRINITY METRO
Attention: Contract Management / Procurement
801 Grove Street
Fort Worth, Texas 76102



IX. Insurance in Force

The Contractor provided insurance and additional insured endorsements on such policies shall remain in force until the Work described in the Contract has been completed and accepted by Trinity Metro, or in any event, not less than of one year after Final Acceptance of the Work. If for any reason insurance coverage is not kept in force, all Work will be stopped until an acceptable Certificate of Insurance is provided to Trinity Metro.

X. Notice of Cancellation

Insurance policies and certificates of insurance shall specifically provide that a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation, non-renewal, or material change be sent to the Insurance Administrator:

TRINITY METRO
Attention: Contract Management / Procurement
801 Grove Street
Fort Worth, Texas 76102

XI. Waiver of Subrogation

To the extent a loss is covered by Contractor provided insurance required herein, Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation or recovery against TRINITY METRO, its Consultants, Dallas Area Rapid Transit, Trinity Railway Express, Herzog Transit Services, Inc., Herzog Technologies Inc., BNSF Railway Company, and National Railroad Passenger Corporation ("Amtrak"), Dallas, Garland and Northeastern Railroad and Union Pacific and their representatives, Board Members, directors, and employees, and Contractor's Subcontractors of any tier, performing Work on the Project. Contractor shall ensure that all its Subcontractors shall provide the same waiver. Contractor shall require all policies of insurance that are in any way related to the Contract and that are secured and maintained by Contractor and all tiers of Subcontractors to include clauses providing that each underwriter shall waive all of its rights of recovery, under subrogation or otherwise, against Trinity Metro, Trinity Metro's Consultants, Trinity Railway Express, Fort Worth & Western Railroad, Dallas Area Rapid Transit, Grapevine Vintage Railroad, Amtrak, Kansas City Southern Railroad, Dallas, Garland and Northeastern Railroad, and their representatives, officers, Executive Committee Members, directors and employees.

XII. Approval of Forms and Companies

All insurance described in this Contract shall be written by an insurance company or companies satisfactory to Trinity Metro, and shall be in a form and content satisfactory to Trinity Metro. No party subject to the provisions of this Contract shall violate or knowingly permit to be violated any of the provisions of the policies of insurance described herein. A Best's rating of A- or better is required of all companies that provide insurance on the Project.

XIII. Contractor Expense

Any type of insurance or any increase of limits of liability not described above that Contractor or its Subcontractor of any tier requires for its own protection or on account of any statute shall be its own responsibility and at its own expense.



XIV. No Release

The carrying of the above-described insurance shall in no way be interpreted as relieving Contractor of any other responsibility or liability under this agreement or any applicable law, statute, regulation or order.

6.8 Interest of Members of Trinity Metro

No member of the governing body of Trinity Metro, other officer, employee or agent of Trinity Metro who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the carrying out of the activities to which this Contract pertains, shall have any personal interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract.

6.9 Interest of Other Local Public Officials and State Officials

No person who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or approval of the carrying out of activities to which this Contract pertains, shall have any personal interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract. No part of the proceeds shall be paid directly or indirectly to any officer or employee of the State of Texas as wages, compensation or gifts in exchange for acting as officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or Proposer to Trinity Metro in connection with any work contemplated or performed relative to this Contract.

6.10 Interest of Members, Or Delegates to Congress

In accordance with 18 U.S.C. Section 431, no member of, or delegate to, the Congress of the United States shall be admitted to any share or part of this Contract, or to any benefit arising there from.

6.11 Interest of the Proposer

The Proposer represents, warrants, and covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this Contract. The Proposer further covenants that no person having such interest shall be employed in the performance of this Contract.

6.12 Authority to Enter Contract

The Proposer has all requisite power and authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform services specified in the RFP and any Contract that may be issued. The Proposer warrants that the individuals who have signed the Proposal have the legal right and authority to bind the Proposer.

6.13 Authorization of Proposal

If the Proposal is made by an individual doing business under an assumed name, the Proposal shall so state. If the Proposal is made by a partnership, the full name and addresses of each member and the address of the partnership shall be given and the Proposal shall be signed by one member thereof. If the Proposal is made by a corporation, it shall be signed in the corporate name by an authorized officer. If the Proposal is made by a joint venture, the full name and address of each member of the joint venture shall be given and the Proposal shall be signed by each venture. Form(s) is included to be filled out and submitted with Proposal.



6.14 Subcontract Approval

Proposer shall include in all subcontracts and supply contracts for services or materials under the Contract a provision making the subcontractor(s) subject to all provisions stipulated in the Contract. The Proposer shall be fully responsible for all services performed and materials supplied by any subcontractor or supplier.

6.15 Cost/Price Analysis

Trinity Metro reserves the right to conduct a cost or price analysis for any purchase or service. Trinity Metro may be required to perform a cost/price analysis when competition is lacking for any purchase. Sole source procurements or procurements which result in a single proposal received, will be subject to a cost/price analysis, which will include the appropriate verification of cost date, the evaluation of specific elements of costs and the projection of the data to determine the effect on proposal prices. Trinity Metro may require a pre-award audit, and potential Proposers shall be prepared to submit data relevant to the proposed work which will allow Trinity Metro to sufficiently determine that the proposed price is fair, reasonable, and in accordance with Federal, State, and local regulations. Procurements resulting in a single proposal will be treated as a negotiated procurement and Trinity Metro reserves the right to negotiate with the single Proposer to achieve a fair and reasonable price. If both parties cannot agree upon a negotiated price, Trinity Metro reserves the right to reject the single proposal.

All Contract change orders or modifications will be subject to a cost analysis.

6.16 Pricing

The price quoted in any proposal submitted shall include all necessary cost to complete the services in accordance with the specifications. Anything omitted from such specifications, which are clearly necessary, shall be considered a portion of such cost although not directly specified or called for in the specifications. Proposer shall note discounts.

6.17 Prompt Payment

The Proposer agrees to pay each subcontractor for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than 30 days from receipt of each payment the Proposer receives from Trinity Metro. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above reference may occur only for good cause following written approval of Trinity Metro. This clause applies to both DBE and non DBE subcontractors. If the Proposer determines the work to be unsatisfactory, it shall notify Trinity Metro immediately, in writing, and state the reasons. Failure to comply with this requirement would be construed to be a breach of contract and subject to contract termination.

6.18 Additional Services Request

Trinity Metro reserves the right to request services under this RFP that may not be specifically identified within the Scope ("Additional Services"). Proposers are encouraged to identify and provide supporting statements and price information for any other area(s) of services not listed in the Scope that may be related to Additional Services and the work of Trinity Metro.



6.19 RFP/Proposed Contract Alterations

No alterations or variables in the terms of the RFP and /or of the Proposed Contract shall be valid or binding upon Trinity Metro unless authorized in writing by Trinity Metro.

6.20 Assignability

Any public agency (i.e., city, district, public agency, municipality, and other political subdivision or any FTA-funded entity) shall have the option of participating in any award made as a result of a Proposal and/or contract at the same prices, terms and conditions as contained in the Contract. Trinity Metro reserves the right to assign any or all portions of goods or services awarded under this RFP and/or Contract. This assignment, should it occur, shall be agreed to by Trinity Metro and Proposer. Once assigned, each agency will enter into its own contract and be solely responsible to the Proposer for obligations to the service assigned. Trinity Metro's right of assignment will remain in force over the contract period or until completion of the contract including options, whichever occurs first. Trinity Metro shall incur no financial responsibility in connection with contracts issued by another public agency. The public agency shall accept sole responsibility for placing service and payments to the Proposer.

6.21 Publication and Media Restrictions

The Contractor shall not publish or reproduce subject data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, without the advance written consent of Trinity Metro, unless Trinity Metro has released or approved the release of that data to the public.

6.22 Gratuities and Kickbacks

It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person to offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or former employee to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation, preparation of any part of a program requirement or a purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy or other particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement of a contract or subcontract or to any solicitation or proposal therefore. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor or a person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. Breach of the provisions of this paragraph is, in addition to a breach of this contract, a breach of ethical standards which may result in civil or criminal sanction and/or debarment or suspension from being a contractor or subcontractor under Trinity Metro contracts.

6.23 No Contingency Fees

Contractor hereby represents that Contractor has not been retained or retained any persons to solicit or secure this Contract upon an agreement or understanding for a contingent commission, percentage, or brokerage fee, except for retention of bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies for the purpose of securing business. Breach of the provisions of this paragraph is, in addition to a breach of this contract, a breach of ethical standards which may result in civil or criminal sanction and/or debarment or suspension from being a contract or subcontractor under Trinity



Metro contracts. Trinity Metro shall have the right to annul said Contract without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the Contract price or consideration the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee.

6.24 Non-Discrimination

It is the policy of Trinity Metro not to discriminate on the basis of age, race, sex, color, national origin, creed, religion or disability in its hiring and employment practices, or in admission to, access to, or operation of its programs, services, and activities. With regard to all aspects of this contract, Contractor certifies and warrants it will comply with this policy. No person shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, be discriminated against in the admission or access to, or be discriminated against in treatment or employment in Trinity Metro contracted programs or activities, on the grounds of handicap and/or disability, age, race, color, religion, creed, sex, national origin, or any other classification protected by federal or Texas State Constitutional or statutory law; nor shall they be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the performance of contracts with Trinity Metro or in the employment practices of Trinity Metro's Contractors. Accordingly, all Proposers entering into contracts with Trinity Metro shall, upon request, be required to show proof of such nondiscrimination and to post in conspicuous places that are available to all employees and applicants, notices of nondiscrimination.

6.25 Licensing and Permits

The Contractor and all subcontractors shall be appropriately licensed in the State of Texas for the work required as a result of the Contract. The cost for any required licenses shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

6.26 Standard of Care

Contractor shall perform all services under this Contract in a skillful and competent manner. Contractor represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling necessary to perform the services. Contractor warrants that all employees and subcontractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the services assigned to them. The Contractor represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the services, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Contract. Any person who is determined by Trinity Metro to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the services, a threat to the safety of persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the services in a manner acceptable to Trinity Metro shall be promptly removed by the Contractor and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the services under this Contract.

6.27 Right to Employ Other Contractors

Trinity Metro reserves the right to purchase goods and/or services, with other Contractors in connection with these Services.

6.28 Contract Amendments/Modifications/Change Orders

No changes to this RFP, Proposer's proposal, or the Contract shall be approved unless appropriate parties of Trinity Metro authorize the change. All changes shall be made by executed written agreement between the parties.



Trinity Metro shall not incur any costs due to any unauthorized changes made by Contractor.

6.29 Tax Exemption

Trinity Metro is exempt under this solicitation from all Federal, State, municipal and local taxation. A copy of tax exempt certification(s) will be provided to the successful proposer upon request. This provision supersedes any language pertaining to payment of taxes that may appear elsewhere in this solicitation.

6.30 Attorney Fees

In the event Trinity Metro deems it necessary to take legal action to enforce any provision of the contract, and Trinity Metro prevails, Contractor shall pay all expenses of such action including Trinity Metro's attorney fees and costs at all stages of the litigation.

6.31 Ineligible Contractors and Subcontractors

Any entity, firm, partnership, or person appearing upon the Comptroller General's list of ineligible contractors for federally-assisted contracts shall be ineligible to act as a subcontractor for Contractor under this Contract. If Contractor is on the Comptroller General's list of ineligible contractors for federally financed or assisted construction, the recipient shall cancel, terminate or suspend this Contract.

6.32 Indemnification

A. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Contract to the contrary and to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, Contractor shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless Trinity Metro, its consultants, Trinity Railway Express, and their respective representatives, officers, directors, shareholders, partners, Board Members, members, managers, employees, affiliates, assignees, agents and contractors (other than Contractor and its Subcontractors and Suppliers) (collectively, the "Indemnitees") from and against all claims, liabilities, damages, losses, injuries to person or property, death, liens, investigations, causes of action, administrative proceedings, suits, judgments, fees (including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and expert fees), and expenses, of any nature, kind or description, directly or indirectly, arising out of, caused by, resulting from, or sustained or incurred in connection with (in whole or in part), (1) the Work performed hereunder, or any part thereof, (2) Contractor's failure to comply with the Contract, (3) the use, occupancy or presence of Contractor, its Subcontractors, Suppliers, employees or agents on or about the Work Site, or (4) any act or omission of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of the foregoing, or anyone that any of the foregoing control or exercise control over ("Indemnity Claims"), but not to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission solely attributable to Trinity Metro or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Trinity Metro.

B. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Contract to the contrary and to the fullest extent permitted by all applicable laws, Contractor shall be solely liable for and shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless the Indemnitees from and against all Indemnity Claims of any nature, kind or description, directly or indirectly, arising out of or resulting from bodily injury to, or sickness, disease or death of, any employee, agent or representative of Contractor or any of its Subcontractors, Supplier or any other person, directly or indirectly employed by any of the foregoing, or anyone that any of the foregoing control or exercise control over regardless of fault or negligence by an Indemnitee



("Employee Claims"). THE OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL APPLY TO ALL EMPLOYEE CLAIMS, EVEN IF SUCH EMPLOYEE CLAIMS ARE CAUSED IN WHOLE OR PART BY THE SOLE, JOINT OR CONTRIBUTORY NEGLIGENCE OF AN INDEMNITEE, BUT NOT TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE GROSS NEGLIGENCE, OR THE WILLFUL MISCONDUCT, OF AN INDEMNITEE. TO THE EXTENT IT MAY LAWFULLY DO SO, CONTRACTOR WILL NOT ASSERT, AS TO ANY CLAIM MADE BY TRINITY METRO UNDER THIS SECTION, ANY DEFENSE IT MAY HAVE UNDER TEXAS WORKERS' COMPENSATION STATUTE. NO COURT OR JURY FINDINGS IN ANY EMPLOYEE CLAIM PURSUANT TO ANY WORKERS' COMPENSATION ACT OR THE FEDERAL EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY ACT AGAINST A PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE RELIED UPON OR USED BY TRINITY METRO OR BY CONTRACTOR IN ANY ATTEMPT TO ASSERT LIABILITY AGAINST THE OTHER PARTY.

- C. If any legal limitations now or hereafter in effect affect the validity or enforceability of the indemnification obligations under this article, such legal limitations are made a part of the indemnification obligation to the minimum extent necessary to bring the indemnification into conformity with the requirements of such limitations, and as so modified the indemnification obligations shall continue in full force and effect. The indemnification obligations under this Section shall not be limited to or by damages, compensation or benefits payable under insurance policies, workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefits acts.
- D. Trinity Metro has the right to appoint defense counsel, at its own expense, to associate in the defense of any contested claim. Trinity Metro will cooperate fully with Contractor in the defense of all claims. Trinity Metro's election to appoint defense counsel will not affect Contractor's obligation to indemnify and hold harmless Trinity Metro from and against all claims to the extent set forth in the Contract. When defending Trinity Metro against claims, Contractor will retain counsel experienced in defending such claims and mutually agreeable to both Trinity Metro and Contractor. Trinity Metro will not unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay its consent to Contractor's choice of counsel. Contractor will not settle any claims in a manner that would impose any expense, penalty, obligation, or limitation on Trinity Metro without Trinity Metro's prior written consent.

6.33 Applicable Law and Jurisdiction

The Contract, as well as the rights, obligations and remedies of the parties, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. Whenever there is no applicable state statute or decisional precedent governing the interpretation of or disputes arising under or related to the Contract, then federal common law, including the law developed by federal boards of contract appeals, the United States Court of Federal Claims, the United States Claims Court, and the Comptroller General of the United States, shall govern. Any suit or action arising from the Contract shall be commenced and prosecuted in the courts of Tarrant County, Texas or the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas, as applicable, and the parties agree to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of these courts.

6.34 Tariffs and Duties

Unless otherwise clearly and explicitly provided in the contract, the contract price includes all applicable Federal, State, local taxes, tariffs, duties, and related import fees.



- The Contractor represents that all unit prices in its proposal/bid for goods and materials furnished under the contract that are imported from outside of the United States include all applicable taxes, tariffs, duties, and related import fees in effect on the contract date.
- At the time of each shipment for goods and materials required for the
 performance of this contract, the Contractor shall furnish Trinity Metro with proof
 of customs entry documentation
 (https://www.cbp.gov/sites/default/files/assets/documents/2023Nov/CBP%20Form%207501.pdf or equivalent), commercial invoices, and
 packing lists evidencing payment of all duties, tariffs, and fees imposed on
 imported goods and materials.
- 3. Unless the contract clearly and explicitly provides otherwise, the Contractor will not be reimbursed by Trinity Metro for applicable taxes, duties, tariffs or related import charges on goods and materials required for the performance of this contract that are in effect on the contract date. The Contractor warrants all such charges are already included in the contract price.
- 4. If, after the contract date, new or increased applicable federal, state, local tax, tariffs, or duties, which were previously excluded on the contract date, are imposed on goods or materials required for the performance of this contract that the Contractor is required to pay or bear as the result of legislative, judicial, or administrative action taking effect after the contract date, the Contractor may submit a request for an Equitable Adjustment, provided Contractor:
 - a. Certifies in writing that:
 - The contract price does not include any contingency for such tax, tariffs, or duties; and
 - ii. The liability for such was not incurred through the Contractor's fault, negligence, or failure to follow instructions of solicitation 26-T0XX; and
 - b. Submits customs entry documentation or equivalent acceptable to Trinity Metro, itemizing the newly imposed applicable federal, state, local tax, tariffs, duties, or import fees the Contractor must pay.
 - Any equitable adjustment request shall be negotiated and, if agreed, incorporated via a contract modification under the Equitable Adjustments and/or Change Orders provisions of the contract. No adjustment shall be made in the contract price under this clause unless the amount of the adjustment exceeds \$250.
- 5. The Contractor agrees the contract price shall be decreased by the amount of any federal, state, local taxes, tariffs, duties, or related import fees for which the Contractor obtains a refund or drawback, as the result of legislative, judicial, or administrative action taking effect after the contract date.
- 6. The Contractor agrees that the contract price shall be decreased by the amount of any federal, state, local taxes, tariffs, duties, or related import fees that the Contractor does not obtain a refund of, through the Contractor's fault, negligence, or failure to follow instructions.
- 7. The Contractor shall promptly notify Trinity Metro, in writing, of all matters relating to any federal, state, local taxes, tariffs, duties, or related import fees that reasonably may be expected to result in either (i) a request for an increase in the contract price or (ii) a decrease in the contract price.
- 8. Trinity Metro shall, without liability, furnish evidence appropriate to establish exemption from any federal, state, or local tax, tariffs, duties, or related import fees



when the Contractor requests such evidence and reasonable basis exists to sustain the exemption.

Trinity Metro reserves the right to audit all customs and import records related to this contract to verify accuracy of all Contractor declared tariffs/duties and compliance with this clause.

6.35 Contract Order of Precedence

A. The General Provisions, Special Provisions, Scope of Work, Contract attachments and exhibits are essential to the Contract. All are intended to be complementary and to provide for completed work suitable for its intended use. A requirement occurring in one is as binding as though occurring in all. Where Plans and Specifications describe portions of the Work in general terms, but details are incomplete or silent, it is understood that only the best general practice is to prevail and that only new Materials and first-quality workmanship are to be used. Omissions of details of Work that are manifestly necessary to carry out the intent of the Contract, or that are customarily performed, shall not relieve Contractor from the obligation to perform such Work. Notes on Plans are part of the Plans. No reliance shall be placed on dimensions scaled from any Plans.

- B. The documents referenced below are in descending order of precedence. Any conflict between any of the documents shall be resolved in favor of the document with higher precedence.
 - Contract Form
 - Federal Provisions
 - Request for Proposal
 - Proposal Response
- C. Contractor shall immediately notify Trinity Metro, in writing, of any ambiguity or conflict within or between documents, any error, omission, lack of necessary detailed description, or a detail, which is a potential code violation, which is discovered in the Specifications or Plans and request clarification and direction. Trinity Metro will provide clarification and direction as required to fulfill the intent of the specifications. Proceeding without the required notification and request for clarification or instruction shall be at Contractor's risk.

6.36 Liquidated Damages

In accordance with the General Provision entitled "Liquidated Damages" and other relevant Special Provisions, the Contractor shall pay to the Authority the sums set forth below for each calendar day of delay in completion of the work or other measure of time as indicated for unauthorized impact to the Authority's operations outside the time periods established. Liquidated Damages shall be cumulative. Liquidated Damages shall not take into consideration any other contractor impact to rail. Each delay or interruption by any contractor shall be assessed Liquidated Damages in accordance with the contract terms.

Impact to Operations The liquidated damages apply to any situation when the Authority or Freight Rail operations are delayed due to contractor activities beyond the authorized allotted time period agreed to by the Authority including, but not limited, to circumstances when: (i) TRE, Freight trains, or on track equipment request to pass through the Form B limits and the contractor fails to clear the foul zone resulting in delays and/or preventing passage through the Form B limits at the maximum authorized speed resulting in delays; or (ii) the contractor fails to clear the foul zone at the end of an approved absolute window

RFP 26-T003



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

resulting in delays.

If circumstances (i) or (ii) occur within the hours of 4:00 am and 9:00 am or between 2:00 pm and 7:00 pm (i.e., rush hours), the amounts shall be \$3,000 for the first fifteen (15) minutes of delay; then \$50,000 for the remainder of the first hour, \$40,000 for the second hour or any part thereof, and \$30,000 for each hour or part thereof of delay thereafter. If an unscheduled service interruption occurs during any other hours, liquidated damages shall be assessed at the rates shown above discounted by ten percent (10%).

Impact to operations during special events (Texas State Fair and FIFA World Cup) The liquidated damages apply to any situation when the Authority or Freight Rail operations are delayed due to contractor activities beyond the authorized allotted time period agreed to by the Authority including, but not limited, to circumstances when: (i) TRE, Freight trains, or on track equipment request to pass through the Form B limits and the contractor fails to clear the foul zone resulting in delays and/or preventing passage through the Form B limits at the maximum authorized speed resulting in delays; or (ii) the contractor fails to clear the foul zone at the end of an approved absolute window resulting in delays.

If circumstances (i) or (ii) occur within the hours of 4:00 am and 9:00 am or between 2:00 pm and 7:00 pm (i.e., rush hours), the amounts shall be \$6,000 for the first fifteen (15) minutes of delay; then \$100,000 for the remainder of the first hour, \$80,000 for the second hour or any part thereof, and \$60,000 for each hour or part thereof of delay thereafter. If an unscheduled service interruption occurs during any other hours, liquidated damages shall be assessed at the rates shown above discounted by ten percent (10%).



Section 7 Federal Contract and Other Requirements

If (1) the consideration payable by Trinity Metro under the Contract shall be funded in whole or in part by federal funds, or (2) if goods or services under the Contract are components of or otherwise pertain to a project funded in whole or in part by federal funds, or (3) in all other cases required by applicable law, the provision of this Section 7 shall apply and are part of the Contract.

7.1 Buy America Certification

This Contract is subject to the "Buy America" requirements of 49 United States Code (USC) §5323(j) and 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 661, as may be amended from time to time, and applicable federal regulations. Prospective proposers' attention is directed to 49 CFR §661.11, "Rolling Stock Procurements." Prospective Proposers have the responsibility to comply with the cited and any governing statutes and regulations, including official interpretations.

A Proposer shall submit in the proposal the appropriate Buy America certification, included in this document, with all offers on FTA-funded contracts. Proposals that are not accompanied by a properly completed Buy America certification are subject to the provisions of 49 CFR 661.13 and will be rejected as nonresponsive.

The two signature blocks on the Buy America certificate are mutually exclusive. Proposers shall sign only one signature block on the certificate. Signing both signature blocks will make the Proposal nonresponsive. A false certification is a criminal act in violation of 18 USC §1001.

A Proposer who has submitted an incomplete Buy America certificate or incorrect certificate of noncompliance through inadvertent or clerical error (but not including failure to sign the certificate, submission of certificates of both compliance and noncompliance, or failure to submit any certification), may submit to the FTA chief counsel within ten (10) days of Proposal opening a written explanation of the circumstances surrounding the submission of the incomplete or incorrect certification in accordance with 28 USC §1746, sworn under penalty of perjury, stating that the submission resulted from inadvertent or clerical error. The Proposer will also submit evidence of intent, such as information about the origin of the product, invoices, or other working documents. The Proposer will simultaneously send a copy of this information to the Agency.

The FTA Chief Counsel may request additional information from the proposer, if necessary. The Agency may not make Contract award until the FTA Chief Counsel issues his or her determination, except as provided in 49 CFR Part 661.15(m).

Certification based on ignorance of proper application of the Buy America requirements is not an inadvertent or clerical error.

A waiver from the Buy America provisions will be sought by the Agency from the FTA, for the proposed awardee, if the grounds for a waiver exist. All Proposers seeking a waiver must submit to the Agency a timely request in writing, which shall include the facts and justification to support the granting of the waiver. Such waiver from the Buy America provisions may be granted if the



FTA determines the following:

- 1. Their application would be inconsistent with the public interest;
- 2. Materials are not produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities and of a satisfactory quality; or
- 3. Inclusion of domestic material will increase the cost of the overall Contract by more than 25 percent.

Any party may petition the FTA to investigate a successful Proposer's compliance with the Buy America certification. The procedures are set out in 49 CFR Part 661.15. If the FTA determines the evidence indicates noncompliance, the FTA will require the Agency to initiate an investigation.

The successful proposer has the burden of proof to establish compliance with its certification. If the successful proposer fails to so demonstrate compliance, then the successful Proposer will be required to substitute sufficient domestic materials without revision of the original Contract terms. Failure to do so will be a breach of the Contract and may lead to the initiation of debarment proceedings under 49 CFR Part 29.

7.2 No Obligation by the Federal Government.

- 1. The Purchaser and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Purchaser, Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying contract.
- 2. The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions.

7.3 Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts.

- 1. The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § § 3801 et seq and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.
- 2. The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on the Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.



3. The Contractor agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

7.4 Access to Records.

- 1. Where the Purchaser is not a State but a local government and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 C. F. R. 18.36(i), the Contractor agrees to provide the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.
- 2. Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 C. F. R. 633.17 to provide the FTA Administrator or his authorized representatives including any PMO Contractor access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311.
- 3. Where the Purchaser is a State and is the FTA Recipient or a sub-grantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 C.F.R. 633.17, Contractor agrees to provide the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator or his authorized representatives, including any PMO Contractor, access to the Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311. By definition, a major capital project excludes contracts of less than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at \$100,000.
- 4. Where the Purchaser enters into a negotiated contract for other than a small purchase or under the simplified acquisition threshold and is an institution of higher education, a hospital or other non-profit organization and is the FTA Recipient or a sub grantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 C.F.R. 19.48, Contractor agrees to provide the Purchaser, FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized representatives with access to any books, documents, papers and record of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.
- 5. Where any Purchaser which is the FTA Recipient or a sub-grantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1) through other than competitive bidding, the Contractor shall make available records related to the contract to the Purchaser, the Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the purposes of conducting an audit and inspection.
- 6. The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.
- 7. The Contractor agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same until the Purchaser, the FTA



Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto. Reference 49 CFR 18.39(i)(11).

FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.

7.5 Federal Changes.

Federal Changes - Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Master Agreement between Purchaser and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. Contractor's failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.

7.6Termination Provisions.

- **1. Termination for Convenience** Trinity Metro, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the Government's interest. If this contract is terminated, the Recipient shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective date of termination.
- 2. Termination for Default If the Contractor fails to deliver supplies or to perform the services within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, Trinity Metro may terminate this contract for default. Trinity Metro shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or performance set forth in this contract.
- If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of Trinity Metro.
- 3. Opportunity to Cure Trinity Metro in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor 30 60 days in which to cure the defect. In such case, the notice of termination will state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions
- If Contractor fails to remedy to Trinity Metro's satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract within ten (10) days after receipt by Contractor of written notice from Trinity Metro setting forth the nature of said breach or default, Trinity Metro shall have the right to terminate the Contract without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude Trinity Metro from also pursuing all available remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.
- **4. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach** In the event that Trinity Metro elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this Contract, such waiver by Trinity Metro shall not limit Trinity Metro's remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Contract.

7.7 Civil Rights (EEO. Title VI & ADA).

1. Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102,



section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.

- 2. Equal Employment Opportunity The following equal employment opportunity requirements apply to the underlying contract:
- a. Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, 'Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor, 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq .. (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, 'Equal Employment Opportunity,' as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, 'Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect construction activities undertaken in the course of the Project. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- b. Age In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- c. Disabilities In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, the Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, 'Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act,' 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- 3. The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA, modified only if necessary to identify the affected parties.

7.8 Incorporation of FTA Terms.

Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms - The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1G are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to



perform any act, or refuse to comply with any FTA requests which would cause Trinity Metro to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

7.9 Energy Conservation.

Energy Conservation - The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.

7.10 Suspension and Debarment

This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945.

The contractor is required to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and must include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows:

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by Trinity Metro. If it is later determined that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to Trinity Metro, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

7.11 Disputes

Trinity Metro and the contractor will attempt to resolve disputes or disagreements promptly. In order to do so, Trinity Metro and the contractor will create an issue resolution ladder which will outline initial responsibility for discussion and resolution, as well as secondary and further responsibility.

If a dispute or disagreement cannot be resolved through discussions between Trinity Metro's representative and the contractor's representative as designated on the issue resolution ladder, the contractor's senior representative and Trinity Metro's senior representative, upon the request of either party, shall meet as soon as conveniently possible, but in no case later than ten (10) days after such a request is made, to attempt to resolve such dispute or disagreement. Prior to any meetings between the senior representatives, Trinity Metro and the contractor shall exchange relevant information that will assist the parties in resolving their dispute or disagreement.

If after the meeting, the senior representatives determine that the dispute or disagreement cannot be resolved on terms satisfactory to both parties, the parties shall submit the dispute or disagreement to non-binding mediation. The mediation shall be conducted by a mutually agreeable impartial mediator, or if the parties cannot so agree, a mediator designated by the American Arbitration Association ("AAA") pursuant to its Construction Industry Mediation Rules, or if the dispute or disagreement is not for a construction contract, those mediation rules most applicable to the type of contract. The mediation will be governed by and conducted pursuant to a mediation agreement negotiated by the parties or, if the parties cannot so agree, by procedures established by the mediator. The venue for any required mediation shall be Tarrant County, Texas unless otherwise agreed to by the parties.



Notwithstanding the procedures identified in subsections 8-104 (1)-(4) of the Trinity Metro Procurement Policy, then Trinity Metro shall have the general ability and authority, when negotiating the terms and conditions of any contract to be entered into with any entity, to negotiate for the inclusion of dispute resolution procedures in such contract. Such dispute resolution procedures may vary from contract to contract, provided that, at a minimum, the procedures require that a meeting of senior representatives, mediation, and/or formal alternative dispute resolution procedures be followed before any party may file suit against, or initiate an arbitration proceeding against, Trinity Metro for an alleged breach of contract claim.

7.11.1 Performance During Dispute - Unless otherwise directed by Trinity Metro, Contractor shall continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.

7.12 Claims for Damages

Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, a claim for damages therefor shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury of damage.

7.13 Remedies

Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in question between Trinity Metro and the Contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach will be decided by mediation if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State of Texas.

7.14 Rights and Remedies

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by Trinity Metro, Architect or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

1. Definitions for Purposes of the section

The term "days" refers to working days when Trinity Metro's administrative offices are open for normal operations.

The term "interested party" means any person (a) who is an actual Proposer or prospective Proposer in the procurement involved, and (b) whose direct economic interest would be affected by the award of the contract or by a failure to award the contract.

Note – The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) will be notified by Trinity Metro of all formal, written protests, when FTA funds are involved.

2. Trinity Metro will hear and consider a bona fide protest regarding its procurement actions. It is anticipated that the majority of protests will be evaluated and finally decided by Trinity Metro. Accordingly, Trinity Metro intends to provide a thorough review of all bona fide protests. Trinity



Metro's primary concern, however, is the timely procurement of needed capital equipment, supplies or services. It does not intend to allow the filing of protests to unnecessarily delay the procurement process, especially if the protest involved is vexatious or frivolous in nature.

Notwithstanding the availability of these protest procedures, any interested party is encouraged to exhaust all methods described in this section of resolving an issue before filing a formal protest with Trinity Metro. In its consideration of a protest, Trinity Metro reserves the right to give due consideration to the good faith efforts of the protestor to resolve the issue involved through informal methods.

3. Submission of Protest

Any interested party may file a protest with Trinity Metro on the basis that Trinity Metro has failed to comply with applicable Federal or State Regulations or with Trinity Metro's procurement process. The protest shall be filed in accordance with the timing requirements set forth in subsection D. "Types of Protests and Timing" of this section, and shall include: The name, phone number, e-mail and address of the protestor.

The RFP and proposed contract number of the proposal. A statement of grounds for the protest, a statement as to what relief is requested, and in particular the Federal or State law or Trinity Metro process alleged to have been violated. This statement shall be accompanied by any supporting documentation the protesting party desires Trinity Metro to consider in making its decision.

Protest shall be submitted to:
Aya Ealy
Director of Procurement
Trinity Metro
801 Grove Street
Fort Worth, TX 76102
Email: Contractmgmt@ridetm.org

4. Types of Protests and Timing

The requirement for timely filing of protest with Trinity Metro will depend upon the type of protests involved. Trinity Metro will consider the following three types of protest by interested parties:

a. Protest regarding proposal

Any protest regarding the proposal shall be filed no later than five (5) business days before proposal due date. Any protest filed after that date regarding the proposal will not be considered by Trinity Metro. This type of protest would include any claim that the proposal contained exclusionary or discriminatory specification, any challenge to the basis of award, or any claim that the proposal documents or the proposal process violated applicable Federal or State law, or that Trinity Metro failed to follow its procurement process in the proposal.

b. Protests regarding Requirements and Responsiveness.

Any protest regarding the requirements and responsiveness of proposal by Trinity Metro shall be filed with Trinity Metro no later than ten (10) business days after receipt of letter of notification of non-responsiveness. Any protest filed after such date regarding the requirements and responsiveness will not be considered by Trinity Metro.



This type of protest would include any challenge to determinations by Trinity Metro of the responsiveness of or the responsibility of a Proposer, or any claim that the requirements and responsiveness of proposal violated Federal or State law or Trinity Metro's procurement process.

c. Protest Regarding Receipt of Non-Award Notification

Any protest regarding the award of the contract shall be filed no later than ten (10) business days after receipt of Non- Award Notification. Any protest regarding the award of the contract filed after that date will not be considered by Trinity Metro.

This type of protest will only be entertained by Trinity Metro if the protestor is able to demonstrate that the party awarded the contract fraudulently represented itself as a responsible Proposer of that Trinity Metro violated Federal or State regulations or its Procurement Process in the award of the contract.

5. Trinity Metro's Response

Trinity Metro will notify the protestor upon timely receipt of a protest and may, where appropriate, request additional information from the protestor. Trinity Metro may, at its discretion, meet with protestor to review the matters raised by the protest. Trinity Metro's consideration of the particular types of protests will, except as otherwise stated in subsection 2. "Decisions by Trinity Metro" of this section E. "Authority Response" proceed in accordance with the following provisions:

a. Types of Protests

Protest regarding proposal

Upon receipt of a timely filed protest regarding the proposal, Trinity Metro will postpone the opening until resolution of the protest. No additional proposals will be accepted during the period of postponement.

If the protest regarding the proposal involves a claim of unduly restrictive or exclusionary specifications, Trinity Metro will, in evaluation of the protest, consider both the specific need of Trinity Metro for the feature or item challenged and any effects on competition of including the specifications regarding that feature or item. If Trinity Metro determines that such feature or item was included in the specification in order to meet justified and valid transit needs of Trinity Metro, and was not unduly restrictive of competition or designed to exclude a particular competitor, then Trinity Metro will have grounds to deny the protest.

ii. Protest regarding requirement and responsiveness

Upon receipt of a timely filed protest regarding the requirements responsiveness, Trinity Metro will suspend its evaluation of all proposals submitted until resolution of the protest, if Trinity Metro determines that the protestor has established that there are reasonable doubts regarding the responsiveness of a proposal or the responsibility of a Proposer or regarding Trinity Metro's compliance with Federal or State Regulations or its procurement process.

iii. Protests after non-award notification

Upon receipt of a timely filed protest regarding the non-award notification Trinity Metro will not



proceed with Contract, if necessary, until the resolution of the protest if Trinity Metro determines that the protestor has established a prima facie case that the Contract was awarded fraudulently or in violation of that Federal or State Regulations or Trinity Metro's procurement process.

b. Decisions by Trinity Metro

As indicated above, in most instances Trinity Metro will suspend the procurement process upon receipt of a bona fide protest. However, Trinity Metro reserves the right, notwithstanding the pendency of a protest, to proceed with the appropriate action in the procurement process or under the Contract in the following cases:

- i. Where the item to be procured is urgently required;
- ii. Where Trinity Metro determines that the protest was vexatious or frivolous; or
- iii. Where delivery or performance will be unduly delayed or other undue harm will occur, by failure to make the award promptly.

After reviewing the protest submitted under this section, Trinity Metro will issue a written decision of the basis of the information provided by the protestor, the results of any meetings with protestor, and Trinity Metro's own investigation. If the protest is upheld, Trinity Metro will take appropriate action to correct the procurement process and protect the rights of the protestor, including reproposal, revised evaluation of proposal or Trinity Metro determinations, or termination of the contract. If the protest is denied, Trinity Metro will lift any suspension imposed and proceed with the procurement process.

7.15 Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment,

31 U.S.C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.] Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the certification required (F8) by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to Trinity Metro.

7.16 Clean Air

- 1. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 *et seq*. The Contractor agrees to report each violation to Trinity Metro and understands and agrees that Trinity Metro will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.
- 2. The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

7.17 Clean Water

1. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seg . The



Contractor agrees to report each violation to Trinity Metro and understands and agrees that Trinity Metro will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.

2. The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

7.18 Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA)

The Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5301(d) which expresses the federal policy that the elderly and persons with disabilities have the same right as other persons to use mass transportation service and facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to implement those policies. The Management Company also agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, and with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 *et seq.*, which requires the provision of accessible facilities and services, and with the following federal regulations, including any amendments thereto:

- 1. U.S. DOT regulations, "Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA)," 49 C.F.R. Part 37;
- 2. U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance," 49 C.F.R. Part 27;
- 3. Joint U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board/U.S. DOT regulations, "Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles," 36 C.F.R. Part 1192 and 49 C.F.R. Part 38;
- 4. U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services," 28 C.F.R. Part 35;
- 5. U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities," 28 C.F.R. Part 36;
- 6. U.S. GSA regulations, "Accommodations for the Physically Handicapped," 41 C.F.R. Subpart 101-19;
- 7. U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act." 29 C.F.R. Part 1630;
- 8. U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations, "Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the Hearing and Speech Disabled," 47 C.F.R. Part 64, Subpart F; and
- 9. FTA regulations, "Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons," 49 C.F.R. Part 609.



7.19 Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action

- 1. Contractor shall comply fully with the requirements of Executive Order Numbers 11246 as amended, 11625, 11701, and 11758 relating to employment practices. If applicable, the provisions of 41 CFR 60-1.4, 60-250.4, and 60-741.4 are hereby incorporated by reference, and Contractor agrees to adhere to said regulations. In the performance of its services, Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, age, marital status, sex, or national origin.
- 2. Contractor/ Subcontractor Assurance. Trinity Metro agrees and assures that it will include the following assurance in each subagreement and third party contract it signs with a Third Party Contractor and agrees to obtain the agreement of each of its Third Party Contractors, and Third Party Subcontractors to include the following assurance in every subagreement and third party contract it signs:
- 3. Contractor, and each Subcontractor must not discriminate based on race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any FTA or U.S. DOT-assisted subagreement, third party contract, and third party subcontract, as applicable, and the administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26;
- 4. The Contractor, and each Subcontractor must take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of U.S. DOT-assisted subagreements, third party contracts, and third party subcontracts, as applicable;
- 5. Failure by the Contractors or Subcontractors to carry out the requirements of this subparagraph 12.e(4)(ii) is a material breach of this subagreement, third party contract, or third party subcontract, as applicable; and
- 6. The following remedies, or such other remedy as Trinity Metro deems appropriate, include, but are not limited to, withholding monthly progress payments, assessing sanctions, liquidated damages, and/or disqualifying the Contractor, or Subcontractor from future bidding as non-responsible.

7.20 Safe Operation of Motor Vehicles

- 1. Distracted Driving, Including Text Messaging While Driving.
- a. Contractor and their subcontractors are encouraged to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while using an electronic device supplied by contractor, and driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contractor owns, leases, or rents, or a privately-owned vehicle when on official business in connection with the contract, or when performing any work for or on behalf of the contract;
- b. Contractor agrees to conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with its size, such as establishing new rules and programs to prohibit text messaging while driving, reevaluating the existing programs to prohibit text messaging while driving, and providing education,



awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks associated with texting while driving. Contractors are encouraged to include this provision in each subconsultant agreement.

2. Seat Belt Use.

Contractors and their subcontractors are encouraged to adopt and enforce on-the-job seat belt policies and programs for their employees when operating company-owned, rented, or personally owned vehicles.

7.21 Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment.

- 1. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.216, Trinity Metro is prohibited from purchasing certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment. As such, Contractor agrees not to purchase any telecommunications and/or video surveillance services or equipment produced by the companies listed below or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities for this contract. Fort Worth Transportation Authority is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:
- a. Procure or obtain;
- b. Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or
- c. Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).
- (i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).
- (ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.
- (iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.
- 2. In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), paragraph (1), heads of executive agencies administering loan, grant, or subsidy programs shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and



to ensure that communications service to users and customers is sustained.

7.22 Veterans Preference

As provided by 49 U.S.C. § 5325(k), to the extent practicable, the Recipient agrees and assures that each of its Subrecipients:

(1) Will give a hiring preference to veterans, as defined in 5 U.S.C § 2108, who have the skills and abilities required to perform construction work required under a third party contract in connection with a Capital Project supported with federal assistance appropriated or made available for 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, and

Will not require an employer to give a preference to any veteran over any equally qualified applicant who is a member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an individual with a disability, or a former employee.

7.23 Davis- Bacon and Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts

49 U.S.C. § 5333(a)

40 U.S.C. §§ 3141 - 3148

29 C.F.R. part 5

18 U.S.C. § 874

29 C.F.R. part 3

Applicable to: Construction contracts over \$2000.

Background and Application

The Davis-Bacon and Copeland Acts are codified at 40 USC 3141, et seq. and 18 USC 874. The Acts apply to grantee construction contracts and subcontracts that "at least partly are financed by a loan or grant from the Federal Government." 40 USC 3145(a), 29 CFR 5.2(h), 49 CFR 18.36(i)(5). The Acts apply to any construction contract over \$2,000. 40 USC 3142(a), 29 CFR 5.5(a). 'Construction,' for purposes of the Acts, includes "actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including painting and decorating." 29 CFR 5.5(a). The requirements of both Acts are incorporated into a single clause (see 29 CFR 3.11) enumerated at 29 CFR 5.5(a) and reproduced below. The clause language is drawn directly from 29 CFR 5.5(a) and any deviation from the model clause below should be coordinated with counsel to ensure the Acts' requirements are satisfied.

(1) Minimum wages - (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the

Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the



contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- (ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) Except with respect to helpers as defined as 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), the work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination; and (4) With respect to helpers as defined in 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), such a classification prevails in the area in which the work is performed.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if

known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.



- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a)(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.
- (v)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if

known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination with 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period



that additional time is necessary.

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to

paragraphs (a)(1)(v) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

- (2) Withholding FWTA shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, FWTA may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.
- (3) Payrolls and basic records (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.

Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

(ii)(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to FWTA for transmission to the Federal Transit Administration as requested. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1),



- U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.
- (B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5 and that such information is correct and complete;
- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;
- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.
- (D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the Federal Transit Administration or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.
- (4) Apprentices and trainees (i) Apprentices Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.

Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(ii) Trainees - Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration.

The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.



- (iii) Equal employment opportunity The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30.
- (5) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (6) Subcontracts The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Transit Administration may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.
- (7) Contract termination: debarment A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- (8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (9) Disputes concerning labor standards Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract.

Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

(10) Certification of eligibility - (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C.1001.

7.24 Contract Works Hours and Safety Standards Act.

The contractor agrees to comply with applicable provisions of Section 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations 29 CFR, Part 5.5. Compliance with the provisions of this article by all levels of subcontractors will be the responsibility of the contractor.

(1) Overtime requirements - No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.



- (2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States for comp damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of \$ 10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.
- (3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages The FWTA shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section.
- (4) Subcontracts The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in this section.
- (5)Payrolls and basic records - (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section I(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.S(a)(I)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section I(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.



Section 8 Safety, Security and Emergency Requirements

Site visitors, to include contracted individuals providing services to Trinity Metro are required to comply with the following safety, security, and/or emergency guidelines:

- All providers will meet federal, state, and local regulatory guidelines related to safe practices and/or are related to safety in order to avoid hazards, potential hazards, and/or damage to Trinity Metro property.
- Contractors and Vendors are responsible for their equipment and personnel.
- In the event of an emergency, site visitors shall follow emergency response best practices; each provider should have an emergency plan. As needed, Trinity Metro designee(s) may need to review an emergency plan for acceptance. This will depend on the area work is being conducted. Designated rallying points may be provided by Trinity Metro representatives, so please ask and include in any Job and/or Safety Briefings to be prepared in the event of an emergency evacuation.
- Contractor and vendor providers are required to notify a Trinity Metro representative, a.k.a. point of contact, after any emergency events. This may be the Procurement Department representative or designated project lead. Alternatively, Trinity Metro's Operations Radio Control Center, or Security Center shall be notified as is deemed necessary, when reporting security or safety-related events requiring Trinity Metro response. Site visitors conducting work on Trinity Metro property should know whom to notify prior to commencement of work on Trinity Metro property.
- Vendors, Contractors, and Sub-Contractors working within any Bus Lot, Train Station, and/or Transit Center are required to provide scope of work being performed to the appropriate Trinity Metro designee so details for coordinating with revenue service vehicles (trains, buses, cutaways, and vans) paths and schedules will not disrupt any transit service.
- Trespassing and/or unauthorized site work is prohibited. This is especially more significant whenever the need arises to be within 25 feet of any railroad track rail unless on public right away such as platforms or grade crossings. Roadway Worker Protection requirements per federal law (49 CFR Part 214) may require successful completion of training and authorized access. Any work within 25 feet of railroad track REQUIRES prior approval under the RWP requirements per 49 CFR Part 214. Disruptions to commuter passenger railroad operations is unacceptable and may be subject to federal fines.
- Depending on the nature of the work being performed, Trinity Metro may require submission of a safety plan, security plan, and/or emergency plan subject to review and acceptance by the Chief Safety Officer or Director of Security or other designee.
- In the event of any accident or incident resulting in injury to any individual or damage to any Trinity Metro property, a safety stand down may be required. Accordingly, when deemed necessary, corrective action and preventive measures(s) subject to approval or acceptance by the Chief Safety Officer or Director of Security or other designee may be required prior to resuming work on behalf of Trinity Metro or on Trinity Metro property.
- Larger scale projects and procurement of equipment may deem it necessary to comply with Safety and Security Certification Program requirements.
- Questions regarding safety, security, and/or emergency requirements may be directed to Trinity Metro's Procurement designee or lead Project Manager.



Section 9 Attachments and Forms

THE FOLLOWING FORMS AND CERTIFICATIONS SHALL BE COMPLETED BY PROPOSER AND SUBMITTED WITH PROPOSAL, AS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 1 MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS.

F1 - ATTACHMENTS AND AMENDMENTS

F2 – CERTIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

F3 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND CERTIFICATION

F4 - CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH RESTRICTION ON LOBBYING

F5 - BUSINESS QUESTIONNAIRE & LIST OF REFERENCES

F6 – BUY AMERICA CERTIFICATION

F7 - LIST OF REFERENCES FOR SIMILAR PROJECTS

F8 - AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION

F9 - PROHIBITION OF CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES BOYCOTTING ISRAEL

F10 – FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTION CERTIFICATION

F11 – TRINITY METRO SAFETY, SECURITY AND EMERGENCY REQUIREMENTS

F12 - BASE PRICE PROPOSAL

F13 - BID BOND

OFFER AND CONTRACT SIGNATURE FORM

ATTACHMENT A

NOTE: FAILURE TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THE FORMS AS INDICATED ABOVE WILL RESULT IN REJECTION OF THE BID/PROPOSAL.

The making of a material misrepresentation of fact could be a basis for disqualification and may cause a firm to be considered for classification as an irresponsible contractor and barred from Trinity Metro work for a period not exceeding six months.



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

F1 - ATTACHMENTS AND AMENDMENTS

The undersigned acknowledges receipt of attachments and amendments for The Fort Worth Transportation's solicitation RFP 26-T003 – NT MOVES BUILD GRANT - TRE Double Track Construction Project

Construction roject	
ATTACHMENTS:	
AMENDMENTS: Failure to acknowledge receipt of all attachment Proposer/Bidder to be considered nonresponsive	ts and amendments may cause re to the solicitation.
Acknowledged receipt of each attachment and a and included with the Proposal/Bid response.	amendment must be clearly established
Authorized Signature	Name of Company
Printed Name and Title	Date



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

F2 – CERTIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The potential contractor for Trinity Metro contract (hereinafter "PRIMARY PARTICIPANT"), _____certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

- 1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
- 2. Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
- 3. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (2) of this certification; and
- 4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

(If the primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, the participant shall attach an explanation to this certification)

THE PRIMARY PARTICIPANT CERTIFIES OR AFFIRMS TRUTHFULNESS AND ACCURACY OF THE CONTENTS OF THE STATEMENTS SUBMITTED ON OR WITH THIS CERTIFICATION AND UNDERSTANDS THAT THE PROVISIONS ON 31 U.S.C. SECTIONS 3801 ET SEQ. ARE APPLICABLE THERETO.

Signature:	Date:	
Name / Title:		
Company Name:		
Name:		

Primary participant <u>is required to secure from every subcontractor</u> this same certification and <u>shall submit such to Trinity Metro</u> prior to such subcontractor's commencing work under this contract. Contractor may make as many copies of this schedule as needed for certification by all subcontractors.

(If the subcontractor is unable to certify to any of the statements above in this certification, the subcontractor shall attach an explanation to this certification)

THE UNDERSIGNED SUBCONTRACTORS FOR TRINITY METRO, CERTIFY OR AFFIRM AS TO ITSELF AND ITS PRINCIPALS TRUTHFULNESS AND ACCURACY OF THE CONTENTS OF THE STATEMENTS SET OUT ABOVE AND SUBMITTED ON OR WITH THIS CERTIFICATION AND UNDERSTAND THAT THE PROVISIONS OF 31 U.S.C. SECTIONS 3801 ET SEQ. ARE APPLICABLE TO THIS CERTIFICATION.



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

Signature:	Date:	
Name / Title:		
Company Name:		
Signature:	Date:	
Name / Title:		
Company Name:		



F3 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND CERTIFICATION

1. Policy

In order to promote fairness and impartiality in Trinity Metro's procurement process, involvement in any decision making role in the solicitation, or in the awarding or administration of a resulting contract by any Related Person who might receive some Benefit is prohibited. "Related Person" is defined as any employee, officer, Executive Committee member, or agent of Trinity Metro. "Benefit" is defined as any direct or indirect pecuniary, financial, or other tangible advantage, gain, promotion, or interest growing out of or related in any manner to the solicitation or to a contract or subcontract growing out of the solicitation. Such involvement of any Related Person is also prohibited when a person bearing certain relationship to the Related Person ("Other Related Person") may receive a Benefit. Such "Other Related Person" is defined as any member of a Related Person's immediate family (a spouse, child, parent, brother or sister), a partner of any Related Person, or any person or organization which employs or is about to employ a Related Person or Other Related Person will or may so benefit, a prohibited conflict of interest may exist.

2. Disclosures

Your obligation, as a prospective contractor under this solicitation, is to disclose fully all information you have or may acquire which has to do with any such Benefit which may come to any Related Person or Other Related Person. In considering the possibility of the existence of such benefit, you also need to consider each person and firm you believe may be involved as a joint venturer, or subcontractor, or other similar role in carrying out and performing a contract with Trinity Metro pursuant to the solicitation. In other words, if you are aware of any business, financial, or other interest, or actual or potential employment relationship between any Related Person or any Other Related Person, on the one hand, and yourself or any other person or firm you believe may be involved in carrying out the contract to be awarded pursuant to this solicitation, on the other hand, you have an affirmative obligation to fully disclose that information to Trinity Metro. You are encouraged to contact the Director of Contract Administration and Procurement or Trinity Metro's General Council prior to the deadline for submitting your Response (defined as a proposal, Proposal or other response to this solicitation), make such disclosure, and request a ruling as to whether any prohibited conflict of interest does in fact exist.

In order for your Response to be considered RESPONSIVE to this solicitation, it is mandatory that you complete and execute the Acknowledgment and Certification below, and include with your Response, written disclosure of all information relative to any potential conflict of interest which may be known to you, and which you have not disclosed to Trinity Metro in writing prior to the submission of your Response.

By:



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND CERTIFICATION (Potential Contractor)

The undersigned potential contractor of Trinity Metro hereby acknowledges receipt and understanding of the Conflict of Interest provisions set out above; and hereby certifies that, except as heretofore or herewith fully disclosed in writing, to the best of potential contractor's knowledge and belief, no such conflict exists, or is likely to exist in the future pertaining to this procurement should the contract be awarded to potential contractor; and potential contractor further hereby promises to promptly notify Trinity Metro in writing if such knowledge or belief changes in the future.

Signature:								Date:		
Name / Title:										
				DGMEN nmende				ION		
The undersigned and understand except as here subcontractor's pertaining to thi and recommen writing if such k	ling of the etofore of knowled s procur ded sub	e Confli or herevalge and ement se contrac	ct of Int with ful belief, should the	erest production in the continuation in the co	rovisior osed i h confl ract be eby pro	ns set of n writing ict exist awarde omises	ut aboving, to standard to see the standard to see the	re; and he the best likely to commer	ereby contract of recontract of the contract o	certifies that commende in the futur bcontracto
Ву:								I	I	
Signature:								Date:		
Name / Title:										

Note: Proposer shall make copies of the Conflict of Interest document and Acknowledgment and Certification form and provide same to each subcontractor Proposer recommends for the contract. Proposer is <u>required to secure an acknowledgment and certification from each subcontractor</u> Proposer recommends and submit such certification to Trinity Metro <u>prior</u> to a subcontractor beginning any work under this contract.

Name / Title:



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

F4 - CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING

Ι,		(Name of certifying official), th	e		
(Title or	position	of certifying official) of		(name of	
compan	y), do h	ereby certify on behalf of said company to Trinity Me	etro that:		
(1)	It will r	not use federal funds to support lobbying.			
(2)	any pe agency of a Me making coope	leral funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on berson for influencing or attempting to influence any, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of ember of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal grant, the making of any federal logative agreement, and the extension, continuation cation of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooper	officer of Congress of any Forant the earth of the earth	r employee of any ss, or an employee ederal contract, the entering into of any al, amendment, or	/ e /
(3)	influen of Cor Congre agreer	funds other than Federal funds have been paid or watering or attempting to influence an officer or employengress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an ess in connection with this Federal contract, gonent, the undersigned shall complete and substant of the Report Lobbying," in accordance with	e of any employe rant loa bmit Sta	agency, a Member se of a member of in, or cooperative andard Form-LLL	r f
(4)	This ce this traprered 31, U.	econtractors and sub-recipients shall certify and discertification is a material representation of fact upon whansaction was made or entered into. Submission uisite for making or entering into this transaction impose. Any person who fails to file the required certification of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$10.000 and not more than \$10.0000 and not more than \$10.00000 and not more than \$10.00000 and not more th	nich relia n of this posed by cation sh	nce is placed wher s certification is a growing section 1352, title all be subject to a	a 2 a
Ву:					
Signatu	ıre:		Date:		

Note: Proposer shall make copies of this blank page and obtain certification from all subcontractors that Proposer is recommending, and submit such certifications to Trinity Metro prior to such subcontractors beginning any work under this contract.



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

F5 - BUSINESS QUESTIONNAIRE

This questionnaire, the requested list of references and the authorization to release financial information are used in part to assist in determining a potential contractor's responsibility. Proposers shall submit the information with the offer. All information shall be current and traceable. Each venture of a joint venture shall submit a separate signed form.

Trinity Metro reserves the right to make additional inquiries based on information submitted, or the lack thereof. Questions concerning this questionnaire or the authorization form shall be directed to the contact person identified on the solicitation.

Legal Name of Proposer ("Business"):
 List name(s) and business address of officers and directors for corporations, partners for partnerships, and ventures for joint ventures (attach additional pages as necessary):
3. Number of years in business under present business name:
4. If applicable, list all other names under which the business identified above operated in the last 5 years:
5. Annual Gross Revenue (past year): M=millions K=thousands
\$100K - \$500K\$500K - \$1M\$1M-\$10M\$10M-\$20M>\$20M
Has the business, or any officer or partner, failed to complete a contract?YesNo
7. Is any litigation pending against the business?YesNo
Has the business ever been declared "not responsible" for the purpose of any governmental agency contract award?YesNo
 Has the business been debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, voluntarily excluded, or otherwise disqualified from bidding, proposing or contracting?



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

10. Are there any proceedings pending relating to the business' responsibility, debarment suspension, voluntary exclusion or qualification to receive a public contract?YesNo	,
11. Has the government or other public entity requested or required enforcement of any or its rights under a surety agreement on the basis of a default or in lieu of declaring the business in default?YesNo	f
12. Is the business in arrears on any contract or debt?YesNo	
13. Has the business been a defaulter, as a principal, surety or otherwise?YesNo)
14. Have liquidated damages or penalty provisions been assessed against the business for failure to complete work on time or for any other reason?YesNo	
15. Does the business maintain a drug-free workplace?YesNo	
16. If a "yes" response is given under questions 6-14, provide a detailed explanation including dates, reference to contract information, contacts, etc. (attach additional pages as necessary):	
17. Business Identification Number (EIN, etc.)	
18. Provided completed List of References for Similar Projects formYesNo	
19. Select whether or not your firm is classified asDBE orNon-DBE	
This question is for DBE Program Classification Purposes Only Race of Firm's Majority Owner Gender of Firm's Majority Owner	
21. NAICS code associated with this RFP:	
I, individually and on behalf of the business named in this Business Questionnaire, do by my signature below, certify that the information provided in this questionnaire is true and correct. understand that any false statements or misrepresentations regarding the business named above may result in:	Ī
 Termination of any or all contracts which Trinity Metro has or may have with the business, Disqualification of the business from consideration for contracts, Removal of the business from Trinity Metro's Proposers' list and/or Legal action(s) applicable under federal, state or local law. 	
Signature: Date:	
Name / Title:	
Company Name:	



F6 – BUY AMERICA CERTIFICATION

§ 661.6 Certification requirements for procurement of steel or manufactured products.

If steel, iron, or manufactured products (as defined in §§ 661.3 and 661.5 of this part) are being procured, the appropriate certificate as set forth below shall be completed and submitted by each bidder or proposer in accordance with the requirement contained in § 661.13(b) of this part.

Certificate of Compliance with Buy America Requirements

The bidder or proposer hereby certifies that it will comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(1), and the applicable regulations in 49 CFR part 661.

Date	
Signature	
Company	
Name	
Title	
Certificate of Non-Compliance with Buy America Requirements	
The bidder or proposer hereby certifies that it cannot comply with the 5323(j), but it may qualify for an exception to the requirement pursua as amended, and the applicable regulations in 49 CFR 661.7.	
Date	
Signature	
Company	
Name	
Title	
[71 FR 14117, Mar. 21, 2006, as amended at 72 FR 53696, Sept. 20	20071



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

F7 - LIST OF REFERENCES FOR SIMILAR PROJECTS

(Use additional pages as necessary)

1. Project:
Date of Completion (if applicable):
Company Name:
Address:
Contact Name:
Telephone Number:
E-Mail Address:
2. Project:
Date of Completion (if applicable):
Company Name:
Address:
Contact Name:
Telephone Number:
E-Mail Address:
3. Project:
Date of Completion (if applicable):
Company Name:
Address:
Contact Name:
Telephone Number:
E-Mail Address:
4. Project:
Date of Completion (if applicable):
Company Name:
Address:
Contact Name:
Contact Name.
Telephone Number:



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

F8 - AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION

Each member of the proposing team **(prime and subs)** shall submit a signed and notarized Form 7 – Non-Collusive Affidavit.

THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVING SUBMITTED PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE NT MOVES BUILD Grant - TRE Double Tracking Construction Project in response to RFP 26-T003 swear that said Proposer has not directly or indirectly entered into any combination, collusion, undertaking, or agreement relative to price to be proposal by any person, or to prevent any person, or persons, or company from submitting pricing; or to entice any Proposer or Bidder to refrain from pricing for such supplies, merchandise, service, or contract, and that said proposal so made is without reference or regard to any other proposal or proposals, and without agreement, understanding or combination, either directly or indirectly, with any person or persons, with reference to such proposing in any way or manner whatsoever.

Signature:	Date:	
Name / Title:		
Company Name:		
STATE of		
County of		
Γhis instrument was subscr	ed and sworn before me thisday of,	, 20
Personalized Seal Below)		
	Notary Public Signature	
	My Commission Expires (Date)	

Failure to properly Notarize and Return This Form with the Proposal Will Invalidate Your Proposal.



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

F9 - PROHIBITION OF CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES BOYCOTTING ISRAEL

(This form must be completed and submitted with the Bid/Proposal)

House Bill 793, effective September 1, 2019, amended the Texas Government Code to add Chapter 2270, Prohibition of Contracts with Companies Boycotting Israel.

Effective September 1, 2019, a state agency and a political subdivision (which includes a transportation authority) may not enter a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that; (i) it does not Boycott Israel; and (ii) will not Boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

"Boycott Israel" is defined to mean refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business purposes.

"Company" is defined to mean a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business associations that exists to make a profit.

l,	(Name of certifying official), the
	(Title or position of certifying official) of
	(name of company), do hereby verify on behalf of said
company to Trir	nity Metro that said company does not Boycott Israel and will not Boycott Israel
(as that term is contract.	defined in Texas Government Code Section 808.001) during the term of this
Signature:	Date:
Name / Title:	



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

F10 - FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTION CERTIFICATION

The Federal Transportation Administration's ("FTA") Master Agreement dated May 2, 2024 (the "Master Agreement") defines a "Third-Party Participant" as:

"Each participant in the Recipient's Project ... whose work under the Project is supported with FTA funding, eligible non-federal share dedicated to the Project, or is dedicated as an in-kind contribution eligible for non-federal share. A Third Party Participant may be a Subrecipient, Third Party Contractor, Third Party Subcontractor, Lessee, or Similar Participant in the Recipient's Project (for example, a partner in a joint development venture)."

A person, partnership, or other entity that submits a bid or proposal under this procurement (a "Proposer") is a prospective Third Party Participant as defined in the Master Agreement. The Master Agreement requires Trinity Metro to obtain the following certifications from each prospective Third Party Participant.

The Proposer signing this form below certifies the following:

- A) The Proposer does not have any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability; and
- B) The Proposer was not convicted of the felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months.

Legal Name of Proposer:
Signature: By:
Print Title:
Date:
If you cannot so certify, Trinity Metro agrees to refer the matter to the FTA and will not enter in any Third Party Agreement with a Proposer without FTA's written approval.
Proposer cannot certify regarding Federal Tax Liability and Recent Felony Conviction.
Legal Name of Proposer:
Signature: By:
Print Title:
Date:

Contract Awardees are required to flow this requirement down to all lower tiers subcontractors, without regard to the value of any subagreement.



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

F11 – TRINITY METRO SAFETY, SECURITY AND EMERGENCY REQUIREMENTS

The undersigned acknowledges and agrees to Trinity Metro's Safety, Security and Emergency Requirements as outlined in Section 8 of this Solicitation.

Authorized Signature	Name of Company
Printed Name and Title	Date

RFP# 26-T003 TRE DOUBLE TRACK CONSTRUCTION

TRINITY METRO

F-12 Base Price Proposal

Bid Item	SCC Code	Description	Units	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
10000	10	GUIDEWAY AND TRACK ELEMENTS				
10001	10.01.01	SUBBALLAST(FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	TON	11,100		
10002	10.01.02	GEOGRID (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	SY	36,000		1
10003	10.01.03	SUBGRADE (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	3,000		
10004	10.01.04	SIGNAGE (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LS	1		1
10005	10.01.05	EXCAVATION (COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	21,500		1
10006	10.01.06	EMBANKMENT (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	26,500		1
10007	10.01.07	6" CONCRETE RIPRAP (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	SY	9,550		1
10008	10.01.08	SEEDING (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	SY	18,000		
10009	10.04.01	HP 14X89 PILES DRIVEN THROUGH GROUND (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	2,110		
10010	10.04.02	HP 14X89 PILES IN PRE-DRILLED ROCK SOCKETS DRIVEN TO CAPACITY (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	2,700		
10011	10.04.03	AUGER 30" DIA. ROCK SOCKETS FOR PILES (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	1,908		
10012	10.04.04	30" TEMP. 3/8" CASING (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	1,166		
10013	10.04.05	CIP CONCRETE FOR 30" PILE CORES (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	355		
10014	10.04.06	PILE TIP POINT (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	100		
10015	10.04.07	PILE BRACING (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	1,342		
10016	10.04.08	EXCAVATION FOR ABUTMENT (COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	200		
10017	10.04.09	PRECAST ABUTMENT CAPS W/ BEARING PADS (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	12		
10018	10.04.10	PRECAST PIER CAPS (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	17		
10019	10.04.11	PRECAST WINGWALLS (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	12		
10020	10.04.12	STEEL PILING PLATE UNDER END CAPS (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	24		
10021	10.04.13	STRUCTURAL BACKFILL AT ABUTMENTS (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	350		
10022	10.04.14	PRECAST CONCRETE BEAMS (FURNISH)	LF	1,168		
10023	10.04.15	PRECAST CONCRETE BEAMS (INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	46		
10024	10.04.16	CARBOLINE COATING OR APPROVED EQUAL (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LS	1		
10025	10.04.17	STEEL DECK PLATES (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	106		
10026	10.04.18	INTERIOR STEEL PLATE FOR CDP3 (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	28		
10027	10.04.19	END STEEL PLATE FOR CDP3 (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	20		
10028	10.04.20	STRUCTURAL STEEL FOR GIRDER STOPS (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LB	1,670		
10029	10.04.21	END HANDRAIL ASSEMBLY (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	12		
10030	10.04.22	INTERIOR HANDRAIL ASSEMBLY W/ GRATING (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	770		
10031	10.04.23	MISC. STRUCTURAL STEEL FOR CLOSURE, COVER, AND FILLER MEMBERS (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LB	26,918		
10032	10.04.24	MISC. ELASTOMERIC BEARING PADS FOR BEAM STOPS (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LS	1		1
10033	10.04.25	ROCK RIPRAP W/ GEOTEXTILE FABRIC (BRIDGE) (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	1,076		1
10034	10.04.26	SITE RESTORATION (COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	4		1

page 70

RFP# 26-T003 TRE DOUBLE TRACK CONSTRUCTION



40000	40	SITEWORK AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS				
40001	40.01.01	CLEAR AND GRUB (COMPLETE IN PLACE)	ACRE	13		
40002	40.01.02	RICHLAND HILLS STATION PLATFORM REMOVAL (COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LS	1		
40003	40.01.03	EXISTING BRIDGE FULL REMOVAL (COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	190		
40004	40.01.04	EXISTING BRIDGE PARTIAL REMOVAL (COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LS	1		
40005	40.01.05	REMOVAL & REPLACEMENT OF STAIRS (COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LS	1		
40006	40.02.01	AREA INLET REMOVAL, PLUG, & GROUT FILL CULVERT (COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LS	1		
40007	40.02.02	STRUCTURAL EXCAVATION FOR CULVERT & BRIDGE (COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	275		
40008	40.02.03	18" SMOOTH STEEL PIPE BY OTHER THAN OPEN CUT (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	148		
40009	40.02.04	36" CORRUGATED METAL PIPE (CMP) (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	29		
40010	40.02.05	66" RCP CULVERT CL V (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	70		
40011	40.02.06	ROCK RIPRAP (CULVERTS & FLUMES) (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	220		
40012	40.02.07	CONCRETE BOX (8'X5') (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	23		
40013	40.02.08	HEADWALL CIP (8'x5' CULVERT) (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	8		
40014	40.02.09	SET TYPE II (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	1		
40015	40.02.10	CL A CONC (FLUME) (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	100		
40016	40.05.01	30" DRILLED SHAFT (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	8,860		
40017	40.05.02	36" DRILLED SHAFT (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	3,497		
40018	40.05.03	48" DRILLED SHAFT (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	140		
40019	40.05.04	CIP RETAINING WALL FOOTING (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	623		
40020	40.05.05	CIP RETAINING WALL (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	19,854		
40021	40.05.06	PRECAST FASCIA PANEL (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	SF	12,993		
40022	40.05.07	CIP CLOSURE CONCRETE (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	CY	401		
40023	40.05.08	CIP TRENCH RETAINING WALL (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	475		
40024	40.05.09	CHAIN LINK FENCE (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LF	4,743		
40025	40.08.01	CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE/EXIT (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LS	1		
40026	40.08.02	EROSION CONTROL (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	LS	1		
40027	40.08.03	TEMP SHORING BRIDGE (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	4		
40028	40.08.04	TEMP SHORING RETAINING WALL (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	SF	5,421		
40029	40.08.05	PERM. SHORING BRIDGE (FURNISH/INSTALL, COMPLETE IN PLACE)	EA	2		
40030	40.08.06	STRUCTURE MONITORING	EA	4		
40031	40.08.07	RWP & FLAGGING - ALLOWANCE	LS	1		\$864,000.00
40032	40.08.08	MOBILIZATION (3%)	LS	1		
40033	40.08.09	INSURANCE	LS	1		
40034	40.08.10	BONDS	LS	1		
40035	40.08.11	GENERAL CONDITIONS	LS	1		
		TOTAL				
					Page 71	

NAME OF FIRM:
MAILING ADDRESS OF FIRM:
SIGNATURE:
DATE:
PHONE NUMBER:
EMAIL:
Trinity Metro reserves the right to reject any and all proposals for any reason deemed to be in
the best interest of Trinity Metro. Trinity Metro reserves the right to accept or reject all or any
part of a proposal, to waive minor technicalities, and to award the proposal to serve the interest

of Trinity Metro best.



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

F13 – BID BOND

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PR	RESENTS, that as
Principal, and	as Surety, are held and firmly
bound unto The Fort Worth Transpor	as Surety, are held and firmly <u>rtation Authority</u> , hereinafter called "OWNER," in the sum
of \$	dollars, (not less than five percent of the total
amount of the Proposal) for the payr	ment of which sum, well and truly to be made, we bind
ourselves, our heirs, executors, admir	nistrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally,
firmly by these presents.	
	itted a Proposal to said OWNER to perform the WORK
required under the Proposal Schedule	of the OWNER's Contract Documents entitled
Trinity Metro	
	RANT – TRE Double Tracking Construction Project
NOW THEREFORE, if said Principal is	s awarded a contract by said OWNER and, within the time
	tice Inviting Proposals" and the "Instructions to Proposers"
	form of Agreement bound with said Contract Documents,
	surance, and furnishes the required Performance Bond and
	hall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force
	upon this bond by said OWNER and OWNER prevails, said
fee to be fixed by the court.	aid OWNER in such suit, including a reasonable attorney's
ree to be fixed by the court.	
SIGNED AND SEALED, this	day of, 20
(SEAL)	(SEAL)
(Principal)	(SEAL) (Surety)
By:	Bv:
By:(Signature)	(Signature)
,	,



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

OFFER AND CONTRACT SIGNATURE FORM

The undersigned ("Proposer") hereby offers to furnish goods and/or services for the contract identified below in strict compliance with the terms, specifications, and conditions of the contract solicitation and, if applicable, any amendments or modifications thereto, all as described on the <u>List of Solicitation Documents</u> attached to and made a part of this document for all purposes (collectively, the "Solicitation Documents") at the prices set out in the undersigned's response to the Solicitation Documents, subject only to modifications, if any, expressly accepted on the <u>Terms and Conditions Acceptance Form</u> attached to and made a part of this document for all purposes.

If and when Trinity Metro executes this Offer and Contract Signature form, the Solicitation Documents, this Offer and Contract Signature Form, and the attachments hereto (the "Contract Documents") shall be a contract between the undersigned and Trinity Metro, on the terms set forth in the Contract Documents, effective as of the date executed by Trinity Metro (the "Effective Date").

Contractor shall submit monthly invoices for Services delivered, completed and accepted, via email to Trinity Metro's Accounts Payable department at accountspayable@ridetm.org and copy the Department Representative listed under Notices in the contract. Approved invoices amounts will be paid net 30 days from the invoice date (Section 5.2, Expenses & Invoicing).

[THE BLANKS	S ABOVE MUST BE COMPLETED BY TRINITY METRO]	
Proposer's Legal Name:		
Point of Contact:		
Address:		
	ent on behalf of Proposer represents and warrants that he or she had contract Documents on Proposer's behalf and bind Proposer to all	
Ву:	, authorized signatory	
Print name:	Print title:	
FORT WORTH TRANSPORTA dba TRINITY METRO	ATION AUTHORITY,	
Ву:	Effective Date:	
Print name:	Print title:	



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

ATTACHMENT A

	s Attachment A is attached to and forms a part of the Offer and Contract Signature form for tract No
1.	Proposal (the "Solicitation") issued by Fort Worth Transportation Authority, dba Trinity Metro, dated, 20
2.	[List all amendments, if any, to the Proposal, by name and date of issuance].
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS ACCEPTANCE FORM
	's signature on the Offer & Contract
Con and belo sigr	ERT BIDDER'S/PROPOSER'S LEGAL NAME IN THIS BLANK] Signature Form to which this Terms 8 ditions Acceptance Form is attached certifies Proposer's complete acceptance of the terms conditions of the Solicitation Documents, subject only to those Proposed Modifications listed by (and on attached additional pages, if any) that have been accepted by Trinity Metro as nified by the initials of an authorized Trinity Metro signatory in the column headed cepted (For Trinity Metro's Use)".
Trini refe state Solie	cosed Modifications will not be accepted or effective without the express written approval of ity Metro in the "Accepted" column. All proposed modifications must be clearly explained rence the Solicitation Documents provision(s) that Proposer proposes to modify and clearly explained any proposed modified language and/or proposed additional terms, and a draft of the citation Documents must be included that provisionally incorporates Proposer's proposed diffications, with proposed additions double-underlined and proposed deletions struck through
prop mod not	e: Unacceptable proposed modifications may remove Bidder's/Proposer's Proposal from sideration for award. Trinity Metro shall be the sole judge on the acceptance or rejection of posed modifications, and its decision shall be final. If a Proposal is returned with proposed difications that are not expressly accepted by Trinity Metro, the Solicitation Documents shall be modified and the Contract Documents shall be binding without giving any force to the accepted modifications.
	ck one of the following responses (if no response is checked or if no Proposed Modifications listed, Bidder's/Proposer will be deemed to take no exceptions):
	Bidder/Proposer takes no exceptions to the RFP 26-T003 and Contract Documents.
	Bidder/Proposer proposes the following modifications to the Solicitation, as further cified in the draft proposed Contract Documents included herewith: (Feel Free to Additional Pages)



NT MOVES BUILD GRANT -TRE Double Tracking Construction Project

Section/Page	Term, Condition, or Specification	Proposed Modification	Accepted (For Trinity Metro use only)

"General Decision Number: TX20250026 06/13/2025

Superseded General Decision Number: TX20240026

State: Texas

Construction Type: Heavy

Counties: Johnson, Parker and Tarrant Counties in Texas.

Heavy Construction Projects (Including Water and Sewer Lines)

Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658. Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(1).

```
| the applicable wage rate |
                 | listed on this wage
                 determination, if it is
                 | higher) for all hours
                 | spent performing on the |
                 contract in 2025.
| If the contract was awarded on |. Executive Order 13658
|or between January 1, 2015 and | generally applies to the |
|January 29, 2022, and the | contract.
|contract is not renewed or |. The contractor must pay all|
extended on or after January | covered workers at least |
|30, 2022:
                     | $13.30 per hour (or the |
                 | applicable wage rate listed|
                 on this wage determination,
                 if it is higher) for all
                 | hours spent performing on |
                 that contract in 2025.
```

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must still submit a conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the Executive Orders is available at

http://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number	er Public	cation Date		
0 01/03	3/2025			
1 06/13	3/2025			
PLUM0146-002 01/	01/2024			
R	ates	Fringes		
PLUMBER/PIPEFITTE	ER	\$ 38.28	12.81	
* SUTX1990-041 06/01/1990				
R	lates	Fringes		
CARPENTER	\$ 1	0.40 **	\$3.64	
Concrete Finisher 9.81 **				
ELECTRICIAN\$ 13.26 **				
Form Setter	\$ 7.	86 **		
Laborers:				
Common	\$ 7.	25 **		
Utility	\$ 8.09 *	**		

PAINTER\$ 10.89 **			
Pipelayer\$ 8.43 **			
Power equipment operators:			
Backhoe\$ 11.89 **	3.30		
Bulldozer\$ 10.76 **			
Crane\$ 13.16 **	3.30		
Front End Loader \$ 10.54 **			
Mechanic\$ 10.93 **			
Scraper\$ 10.00 **			
Reinforcing Steel Setter\$ 10.64 **			
TRUCK DRIVER 7.34 **			

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

** Workers in this classification may be entitled to a higher minimum wage under Executive Order 14026 (\$17.75) or 13658 (\$13.30). Please see the Note at the top of the wage determination for more information. Please also note that the minimum wage requirements of Executive Order 14026 are not currently being enforced as to any contract or subcontract to which the states of Texas, Louisiana, or Mississippi, including

their agencies, are a party.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (iii)).

.....

The body of each wage determination lists the classifications and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the type(s) of construction and geographic area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order under rate identifiers indicating whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate), a survey rate, a weighted union average rate, a state adopted rate, or a supplemental classification rate.

Union Rate Identifiers

A four-letter identifier beginning with characters other than
""SU"", ""UAVG"", ?SA?, or ?SC? denotes that a union rate was
prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example:

PLUM0198-005 07/01/2024. PLUM is an identifier of the union
whose collectively bargained rate prevailed in the survey for
this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers.

0198 indicates the local union number or district council
number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next
number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in
processing the wage determination. The date, 07/01/2024 in the
example, is the effective date of the most current negotiated
rate.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all changes over time that are reported to WHD in the rates in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing the classification.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

The UAVG identifier indicates that no single rate prevailed for those classifications, but that 100% of the data reported for the classifications reflected union rates. EXAMPLE:

UAVG-OH-0010 01/01/2024. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the State of Ohio.

The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. The date, 01/01/2024 in the example, indicates the date the wage determination was updated to reflect the most current union average rate.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January, to reflect a weighted average of the current rates in the collective bargaining agreements on which the rate is based.

Survey Rate Identifiers

The ""SU"" identifier indicates that either a single non-union rate prevailed (as defined in 29 CFR 1.2) for this classification in the survey or that the rate was derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As a weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SUFL2022-007 6/27/2024. SU indicates the rate is a single non-union prevailing rate or a weighted average of survey data for that classification. FL indicates the State of Florida. 2022 is the year of the survey on which these classifications and rates are

based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. The date, 6/27/2024 in the example, indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

?SU? wage rates typically remain in effect until a new survey is conducted. However, the Wage and Hour Division (WHD) has the discretion to update such rates under 29 CFR 1.6(c)(1).

State Adopted Rate Identifiers

The ""SA"" identifier indicates that the classifications and prevailing wage rates set by a state (or local) government were adopted under 29 C.F.R 1.3(g)-(h). Example: SAME2023-007 01/03/2024. SA reflects that the rates are state adopted. ME refers to the State of Maine. 2023 is the year during which the state completed the survey on which the listed classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. The date, 01/03/2024 in the example, reflects the date on which the classifications and rates under the ?SA? identifier took effect under state law in the state from which the rates were adopted.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

1) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can

be:

- a) a survey underlying a wage determination
- b) an existing published wage determination
- c) an initial WHD letter setting forth a position on
- a wage determination matter
- d) an initial conformance (additional classification
- and rate) determination

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be directed to the WHD Branch of Wage Surveys. Requests can be submitted via email to davisbaconinfo@dol.gov or by mail to:

Branch of Wage Surveys

Wage and Hour Division

U.S. Department of Labor

200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.

Washington, DC 20210

Regarding any other wage determination matter such as conformance decisions, requests for initial decisions should be directed to the WHD Branch of Construction Wage Determinations.

Requests can be submitted via email to BCWD-Office@dol.gov or by mail to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations

Wage and Hour Division

U.S. Department of Labor

200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

2) If an initial decision has been issued, then any interested party (those affected by the action) that disagrees with the decision can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Requests for review and reconsideration can be submitted via email to dba.reconsideration@dol.gov or by mail to:

Wage and Hour Administrator
U.S. Department of Labor
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board
U.S. Department of Labor
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20210.

END OF GENERAL DECISION"